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Travelers

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Friday October 21, 2016
Writer: Brad Wright
Director: Nick Hurran
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: Ian Tracey (Ray), Arnold Pinnock (Walt Forbes), Olivia Cheng (Dr.
Grace Lee), J. Alex Brinson (Jeff Conniker), Garry Chalk (Detective
Gower), William MacDonald (Gary Holden), Teryl Rothery (Patricia
Holden), Alyssa Lynch (Rene Bellamy), Dylan Playfair (Kyle), Marcus
Aurelio (Fighter), Zack Lavoie (Stephen), Angela Palmer (Tory), Tyson
Bellusci (Teen #1), Anthony Scardera (Teen #2)

Summary: Five futuristic survivors become an elite team of operatives who un-
dertake missions to the 21st century in an attempt to save humanity
from affecting total destruction.

Travelers is about a group humans from
a hundreds years into the future (when
our species has almost become extinct)
slipping into the bodies of present day
humans by projecting their conscious-
ness back through time. The travelers
saunter into the past so they can save the
world from the fated apocalypse. They de-
stroy bad guys. They prevent bad crimes.
They change the course of the bad tomor-
rows.

And there are thousands of these do
gooders on earth taking part in this
communal mission. The travelers choose
their host bodies by looking at a list of in-

dividuals who are going to die in the coming days. They then use an advanced future technology
to take full bodily control moments before the host passes away. In order to achieve this extraor-
dinary endeavour, they must know the precise time, elevation, latitude and longitude of the host’s
demise. Once they’re settled into their new bod, they kick their world saving into high gear. They
also try to confirm information about the lives of their hosts, figure out 21st century systems
and norms, and behave in a not strange way. This all proves to be more difficult than imagined
because the historical records and social media profiles they study often aren’t as accurate as
they think.

So, who are the travelers exactly? Well, allow me to introduce you to this eclectic cast of
characters as I also sum up everything that happened in this excellent inaugural episode.

The first traveler that we meet is Marcy, an intellectually disabled woman who works in a
library. In the opening scene, she witnesses a female coworker being attacked by four violent
men in the dark parking lot outside her place of employment. When Marcy hears the screams
of her friend, she bangs on the glass windows of the library which turns the abusive gang’s
attention towards her instead. As her coworker runs in the opposite direction, Marcy sprints up
the stairs, trips on a step, and hits her forehead against the concrete. She observes blood on her
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hand while the following text appears onscreen: ”Recorded Time of Death 10:42” preceded by a
short countdown. She ventures outside when she thinks the gang has departed but when she
bends down to pick up the deserted bag of her coworker, they strike her against the face and she
falls to the wet pavement. That’s when the traveler does their thing.

Marcy grabs hold of her skull and cries out in horror as her consciousness is being overtaken.
Eventually her screams vanish and she opens her eyes with a fresh, traveler perspective on the
world. She stands strongly and confidently and demands that the men return a possession
that her friend David gave to her. Her voice sounds different. She previously had a stutter but
suddenly speaks without any interference. Marcy then pummels the men like a trained warrior.

The next time we see her she’s lying awake in bed adjusting to 21st century existence. She
hears a knock at the door accompanied by a friendly man’s voice speaking her name. She inquires
if the friendly man is ”David?” and he replies ”Yup!”. When she opens sesame, David is shocked
to see that Marcy is completely nude. So, does this mean that clothes are not a thing in the
future? If so, how do people stay warm in the winter? Maybe this show isn’t Canadian? David
requests that Marcy get dressed and chalks up the nudity to her having a crush on him. When
she’s decent, he is then shocked to see a cut on her forehead and takes her to the doctor.

They hop on a bus and to pass the time, he suggests they do some reading out loud. He
reaches into his bag to grab a kid’s book but as he does so Marcy begins to eloquently read on
her own from a newspaper with no interference. He stares back at her in confusion. When they
arrive at the doctor, David asks the medical professional what on earth is going on with Marcy.
He claims it’s a miracle. The doctor disagrees. Marcy has a severe intellectual disability and the
doctor promises that no injury could increase her intellectual capacity to this level. When they
quiz Marcy about the details of her life she discloses that she works as a librarian and that David
is a reporter who often checks out books from her. David patiently corrects her false info. She is
not a librarian. She cleans the library and he is not a reporter. He is her social worker. Marcy
gathered these facts from her fake social media profile that David and her created for fun.

As Marcy nods along, acknowledging her mistake, her eyes roll into the back of her head, her
breathing staggers and she loses consciousness. The next time we see her she is lying in bed
once more but this time in a hospital. She had a seizure. Marcy realizes that her host body has
too much pre-existing damage and that she is at a diminished capacity. She insists that she
can’t be in the hospital because she has important work to do. ”At the library?” David asks. No,
David. Not at the library. When he goes to fetch the doc she makes a run for it and heads straight
to her social worker’s house. When he returns he wants answers but she doesn’t provide any.
She sleeps on David’s couch, naked of course because she still thinks that clothes aren’t a thing.
There is no WAY she’s Canadian. When David leaves to go to work, Marcy informs him that she’s
going out later and that he should stay in because the streets won’t be safe. In classic David
style, he wants to know what on earth is going on but Marcy swiftly shuts him up with a kiss.
He accepts this answer and exits as she sneakily uses his computer.

The second traveler we encounter is Trevor, a high school quarterback who is taking a break
from football to do some kickboxing. We join him in the middle of a losing fight with his skin
bruised, his muscles weak and his mouth full of blood. Trevor’s ”Recorded Time of Death” is
11:06 which is fast approaching. His friend advises that he concede the fight which he really
should. I mean, he’s about to to die! At 11:06! Concede, bro! Concede! But proud Trevor doesn’t
listen, returns to the match and within seconds he is walloped and collapses. Like Marcy, he
holds his head and screeches as his consciousness is replaced by a future human. He then
calmly rises and politely concedes the fight.

Although Trevor didn’t die in that brawl, he still walked away with a serious concussion and a
damaged hand and a completely different personality. He wakes up early in the morning because
he heard birds chirping, which is very un-Trevor like, and sits in his family kitchen attempting
to decipher an ”R U Ok Babe?” text from his girlfriend. His pissed off dad scrutinizes him for
putting a sports scholarship at risk by getting involved in a stupid fight before a game and his
sweet mom gifts him with an apple. When he replies ”Thank you, Mom” his pissed off dad is all
”Thank you, Mom? Who the hell is that?”

Trevor’s worried girlfriend, Rene, doesn’t wait for a response to her text. She jogs up to her
bf’s house, hugs him tightly and offers to make him feel better via sex. He halts the intercourse
(it’s not doctor recommended) and informs Rene that due to a wee bit of brain damage he doesn’t
know who he is and needs her assistance to make him remember. Rene finds amnesia romantic
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and agrees to help. He has a similar convo with his best friend at school when he doesn’t know
which locker is his. Meanwhile, his bestie doesn’t know why Trevor is at school at all. Going to
school is also very un-Trevor like.

Going to school is also not a common practice for our third traveler, Phillip, whose host is
a drug addict and a college student. His drug of choice is heroin and heroin is precisely what
he is doing before his consciousness is traveler-ed. Rock music is blasting in the background
and a skull-wearing-sunglasses poster hangs on the wall as Phillip’s host and his bud inject the
un-cut drug directly into their veins. Phillip’s host was supposed to overdose with his friend but
thankfully only his friend overdoses. When the traveler makes an appearance, he ditches the
syringe, puts on his jacket and beelines it to the door. That is before watching his chum die a
few feet away, which unsurprisingly comes back to bite him in the ass.

As Phillip sits hunched over a computer at an internet cafe typing in jumbled numbers and
reading the word ”Confirmed” he is approached by a police detective who updates him about his
pal being dead. Phillip does not flinch in response because he was already aware as a result of
being present for the dying. The detective is rightfully suspicious so he brings in the traveler for
questioning and he picks up some coke along the way. Like, coca cola coke. Not the other kind.
The detective places his bottle of coca cola coke on the table and launches into the interrogation.
Phillip tells the truth but he’s going through withdrawal so he’s a tad disoriented.

The detective comments on Phillip’s host’s body’s addiction and reveals that he knows every-
thing there is to know about Phillip’s host’s body’s life. I wonder if he knows that he likes skulls
who wear sunglasses. Philip’s threatening rebuttal is that this coca cola drinking fool has no idea
who he is. Touche, traveler man. The detective speculates that Philip injected the heroin into his
buddy which under law is manslaughter. Yikes. This traveler did not win the lottery with this
pick. Saw a dude die. Going through heroin withdrawal. Suspected of manslaughter. His luck
needs to change and it does when he meets with his understanding lawyer who struggles with
an addiction himself. He claims it’s cigarettes. Phillip guesses it’s gambling. He isn’t wrong.

His lawyer wants to plead guilty but Phillip can’t go to prison. He has important work to do,
like Marcy and no, it’s not at the library. So, he uses the attorney-client confidentiality agreement
and his legal counsel’s gambling addiction to his advantage. He provides his lawyer with a cash
advance and the guaranteed outcomes of a horse race and again he isn’t wrong. His lawyer wins
a whole lot of money which he generously splits with his client who plans to use it to fund a
secret hideout. The cherry on top of the traveler sundae is that Phillip walks free as well.

Well, it’s positive until Philip refuses to provide his lawyer with any further guaranteed horse
racing outcomes. When Phillip’s legal counsel is no longer his legal counsel, the coca cola drink-
ing detective returns with a vengeance. He chases Phillip around town for a while but because
he’s not in the greatest shape he needs to take a break before following Philip over a fence. He
quips that if he kept going he might have had a heart attack. Phillip guesses that he is currently
having a heart attack. He isn’t wrong. Because he is from the future and also this detective was
being considered as a potential host body. Sadly, Phillip can’t call an ambulance because the
detective is destined to expire. So, he just watches him die because apparently that is a hobby of
his. He wishes he could help, as evidenced by his tragic weeping.

Our fourth traveler is Carly, who is a single mom in an abusive relationship with a man named
Jeff. She is taking care of a baby solo and having to defend herself against the violence of the
father of her child. We witness this struggle in her first scene when she is attempting to warm
up dinner for her hungry infant and Jeff, who is intoxicated, pressures her to let him in. When
she opens the door her recorded time of death fades into frame. Jeff wonders what the ”shit” on
the table is. She answers that it’s baby food because they have a baby. He interrupts this as her
calling him an idiot and knocks her to the ground. Carly shrieks as her traveler arrives and Jeff
gets even angrier and more violent in response. When her consciousness has vanished, Carly
forces Jeff to leave and continues on raising her son.

But, the traveler Carly doesn’t know what that entails so she googles ”how to care for an
infant” as she gently feeds her baby cookies. Like the other future peeps, she logs into the
traveler database and investigates the status of her colleagues. When she also sees the word
”Confirmed” she turns to her kiddo and whispers that ”Daddy is coming”. I assume Daddy is
metaphorical. It’s definitely not in reference to Jeff, that’s for sure. When his car pulls up to her
house she is not happy to see him and she does not accept his apology. Carly educates him on
the difference between a fight and abuse, limits when he can see his son and warns him about
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paying child support. When he wants to make it up to her, she says he can change the baby’s
diaper, likely because she has no idea how to do it.

But, Jeff does not back down. He begins to stalk Carly. He parks outside her house and
watches her from a distance. He drives alongside her as she walks down the sidewalk. He gets
jealous when she speaks to any man. He demands to know where she is going. When he aggres-
sively approaches her though she does not tolerate his intimidation. She does not have time for
him and when he yells that she has to ”make time” she physically defends herself. She twists his
finger, punches his nose, flips him upside down and knocks him to the ground.

Then there is our fifth and final traveler Grant MacLaren, who is a FBI Special Agent and the
traveler team’s leader. Grant spends most of the episode not as a traveler but as a legit present
day human. He becomes involved with the travelers when a coworker of his is sent a ”red flag” for
suspicious online encryption communication. Grant takes a look at the traveler’s database and
admits that he has no idea what he is looking at. The code and jumbled numbers and random
words is unlike anything he has ever seen before. His fellow FBI agent thinks the users might just
be gamers but he did find GPS coordinates that correspond to an abandoned building downtown.
Although Grant is preoccupied with arresting a potential shooter named Jonas Walker, he takes
on the case and begins investigating asap.

Grant becomes more intrigued when he learns that the IP addresses connected to the en-
crypted communication are oddly scattered throughout town. He becomes even more intrigued
when he discovers that the guy who set up the chat room (Phillip) was arrested and released on
a technicality. Grant decides to contact Phillip’s arresting officer as well as visit the owners of
every IP address. He speaks with Trevor’s sweet mom but thinks little of the interaction because
she concurs that her son is a big time gamer. Grant calls the detective who informs the agent
that Phillip strangely just won some money which Grant takes note of. But, the detective insures
him that there is no way Philip is in cahoots with a terrorist organization. When Grant drops in
at Carly’s place he inquiries if she will be going out that evening because he suspects that the
travelers are planning to gather in the abandoned building later that day.

Although Carly does have plans, she lies to Grant (while Jeff sits lurking in a car nearby).
When Grant swings by David’s home, Marcy doesn’t answer the door. So, he gives David a ring
directly who fails to mention that a bizarre Marcy has been staying with him. He does mention
though that maybe his neighbours who use his wifi were responsible for the IP address. Grant
isn’t too panicked about the situation until he tries to reach out to the detective again and is
told that he recently passed away. This is enough to motivate him to check out this abandoned
building, gun in hand and Grant isn’t the only one crashing the traveler party. Stalker Jeff was
on Carly’s tail and strolls through the space too as he calls out her name. When a blackout
sweeps the city, Grant almost falls to his death through an open elevator shaft from the 12th
floor.

But Trevor steps in and saves him. That’s when the FBI agent meets the traveler crew. Marcy,
Carly and Phillip step forward from the shadows and explain that they have been waiting for him
and that they are on a mission from the future. They do this while counting down to Grant’s
demise and while Grant notices a lifeless man on the ground. They continue their explaining
and identify the body as Jonas Walker, the shooter that Grant failed to arrest. The traveler’s took
the matter into their own hands and stopped Walker from going on a shooting rampage. Before
Grant can arrest these vigilantes, his knees buckle, he grabs his skull and screams out in pain.
His consciousness has been replaced by a traveler whose first words are ”I see we all made it.
Let’s begin”.
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Protocol 6

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Monday October 24, 2016
Writer: Gillian Muller
Director: Andy Mikita
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: David Lewis (Major Gleason), Kyra Zagorsky (Dr. Delaney), Leah Cairns
(Kathryn MacLaren), Teryl Rothery (Patricia Holden), Kristine Cofsky
(Officer Boyd), Giacomo Baessato (Private Wilson), Jesse Reid (Mil-
itary Scientist), Chris Webb (Businessman), Chevy Souther (Jason),
Karen Khunkhun (Reporter), Aaron Hutchinson (Security Guard), Au-
drey Smallman (10 Year Old Girl), Michael Meneer (News Anchor #1)

Summary: The futuristic survivors undertake a mission to the 21st century,
where a potentially fatal mistake leaves them grasping a ticking time
bomb.

The episode begins exactly where we left
last week: greeting a very recently landed
fellow traveler. But, this isn’t just any
very recently landed fellow traveler, this
is the leader of the crew operating within
the host body of none other than FBI
Special Agent Grant MacLaren. And be-
ing the good, responsible boss that he is,
within seconds of transporting his con-
sciousness across time and space and al-
ternate realities he gets straight down to

business. He wants all of the updates and he wants ’em STAT.
MacLaren begins by inquiring if there are any problems he should know about. Marcy, the

previous library employee, vaguely explains that her host’s intel is way off the mark but she
promises she is handling it. She does this as she gently inputs a pretty much invisible commu-
nication device into the side of MacLaren’s neck so that he can chat with his team. Carly, the
tough single mom, confirms that the traveler’s neck phones are in working order and all five of
them confirm. MacLaren is impressed that Trevor, the high school football player, was able to
build ”coms” (which I’m assuming are these communication devices). He did it after school, he
jokes. Once MacLaren is up to speed, the travelers grab their equipment and promptly head to
the exit. But, the beginning of their mission is delayed by the arrival of a squad of gun-wielding
police officers who MacLaren apparently called in before his consciousness was swapped out.

We take a break from our scheduled traveler programming to meet two of our main guest
characters in this episode. The sarcastic, intense Dr. Delaney and the rude, stubborn Major
Gleason. Dr. Delaney is in possession of powerful antimatter which she created and which is
currently contained in a protective facility. However, because the entire power grid is down (due
to the blackout) Gleason does not think it’s safe there. It could result in a deadly explosion. Her
emergency backups aren’t designed to last for more than a few hours but Delaney thinks it’s
more dangerous to relocate the antimatter especially by untested transport vehicles. Gleason
strongly disagrees. He asserts that any distance they manage to take it is better. When Delaney
accuses him of wanting to make a weapon, he politely bids her adieu and saunters away.
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Then we get right back to our traveler buddies to see what’s happening with the feds on their
end. MacLaren divulges that he was in pursuit of a suspect (the dead shooter on the ground) who
he was forced to take out. Carly also chimes in that there is a cop locked out on the roof otherwise
known as her host’s abusive partner Jeff who followed her there. The female seemingly in charge
of the police squad is Officer Boyd. She relieves MacLaren of any further duties by politely ”taking
it from here” and then hands the FBI agent his containment unit as she introduces herself
as traveler 3185. MacLaren is as shocked as we are to discover Boyd’s true identity because
he thought they were meeting enroute. But, as the wise traveler that she is, Boyd gives the
inexperienced MacLaren a solid piece of advice. No plan survives contact with the past.

MacLaren et all say tata to Officer Boyd and hop into a vehicle to prevent an explosion and
thus saving the lives of 11,000 people. But, what explosion? Only the anti-matter explosion that
Dr. Delaney was desperately attempting to avoid and which Major Gleason caused by irresponsi-
bly transporting the damn thing across town via a giant truck and a few other slick cars following
behind. As the Major’s smart colleague informs him, the containment unit is failing and he is de-
tecting micro annihilations, although Major’s seat passenger isn’t so convinced that Dr. Delaney
was totally correct. Regardless, they stop the convoy (all of those automobiles) and try to find a
solution.

But, the traveler’s have already got one and are covertly watching Gleason’s every move from
their own wheels in the distance. MacLaren and Carly are having a private rendezvous in their
car. They even turn off their neck phones so the other traveler’s can’t listen in. This is when we
learn that this pair of traveler consciousnesses in this pair of good-looking host bodies are an
item. We do not learn what kind of item they are (casually dating, legally married, travelers with
benefits) but we do know that there is a history there which has continued into the 21st century.
Carly scans MacLaren’s hot bod and MacLaren does the same in the mirror. He flirtatiously asks
Carly what she thinks of older men and she flirtatiously replies that she ruminated about that
this morning when the host body paid her a visit. Former MacLaren seem to share more than a
few similarities with present MacLaren.

Back to Gleason. Since an anti-matter detonation is inevitable, he orders that everyone get the
heck out of there (there being near the convoy). Meanwhile, the driver of the truck is going to haul
that ticking time bomb as far away as possible. Gleason ensures that he will be following just
behind and that the road ahead will be clear. Only problem is Gleason is a big old liar. As it turns
out he won’t be following behind and the road isn’t clear. Why? ’Cause of the travelers of course!
Or more specifically, ’cause of Carly standing in front of the truck and blocking the pathway. She
takes a break from coquettishly bantering with MacLaren to thwart a deadly disaster. The truck
driver radios Major Gleason but he is suspiciously unavailable. And before the dude behind the
wheel can say ”Lady, you do not want to be here!” Marcy zaps him unconscious with one of those
ultra cool Star Trek-esque tools the traveler’s carry around.

Trevor works his techy magic, rapidly retrieves the antimatter and the vigilantes zip away
undetected just as the driver is waking from his Marcy inflicted slumber. When MacLaren re-
convenes with his soldiers, Trevor notifies him that they are roughly good for 40 hours until
they have to host an explosion of their own. That is other than the much smaller explosion that
goes go down a few dozen feet away within the truck injuring and/or killing the poor motorist
who is having a real rough couple of minutes. But, what to do with the antimatter now? Hmm.
MacLaren knows! They will hand it off to the arriving leader of a different team and their first
mission will be complete. Woo! Marcy and Philip volunteer to handle greeting the leader since
Carly has a baby to take care of, Trevor has school, and MacLaren has a wife he’s got to meet.

The travelers call it a night and all head home to their respective loved ones. Marcy has a
candlelit conversation with her social worker and current roommate David who wants to know
why an FBI agent gave him a ring earlier. Marcy avoids the truth by telling the truth and saying
that she works with the FBI agent which leads David to making the assumption that she’s an
agent herself. He also wants to know why she’s living with him (rent free no less!) and she makes
a heartfelt speech about how there will come a time when she will need someone she trusts and
she definitely trusts David (likely because he’s head over heels in love with her).

Speaking of head over heels in love, MacLaren drops Carly off at her abode and before she
exits the car to relieve her babysitter of her baby-watching duty she plants a passionate smooch
on the lips of her leader. This long awaited kiss proves to MacLaren that yes indeed, that is
100% the consciousness of his beau in the body of that host. Trevor sneaks up the creaky
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stairs of his parent’s house and bypasses his mom who is running a bath, potentially averting
a maybe grounding. MacLaren enters his fancy schmancy Ikea catalogue home for the first time
and instead of crawling into bed with a basic stranger, he passes out on the couch in his full
suit. Philip drops off the antimatter at the traveler’s recently acquired hideout/an abandoned
warehouse and crashes on a floor mattress as he painfully sweats out his heroine withdrawal.

In the morning, MacLaren shares a confusing kitchen convo with his wife Kat, who he mis-
takenly refers to as Katherine, which he hasn’t done since their first date. Kat is confused but
excuses his highly strange demeanor and diagnoses his condition as not sleeping enough. Trevor
is confused as well when he awakes to a teenage erection and his mom strolls into his bedroom
unannounced. Carly’s morning routine is building muscle and eating baby food and Philip’s is
vomiting and considering doing a hit of heroin to cure him of his ailments. David wants Marcy
to go to the hospital with him due to her having a seizure but Marcy claims she doesn’t need
a doctor ’cause she is a doctor. Surprise! David persists so Marcy makes a deal. She will go to
the hospital if she is wrong about predicting a small commuter plane crash at noon. Obviously,
David does not believe her but he does give her a cellphone to contact her later on.

Marcy accepts the gift and heads out to connect with Philip and welcome the team leader
they gotta hand the antimatter over to. She does connect with Philip but unfortunately the
team leader’s consciousness does not reach his destination because although his host body
wasn’t able to commit suicide using a gun he was able to commit suicide swallowing pills which
the traveler director must have been unaware of. When MacLaren finds about that this simple
task has transformed into a major catastrophe he freaks out with his team at the hideout. He
wonders if the director has sent them a messenger who takes the form of an adolescent child
but no one has bumped into any kids as of late. Trevor tries to relax everyone by saying that the
director will assign the team leader to another host. Duh! Unless, Maclaren counters, one does
not become available in time since they only have 30 hours left. Philip lists off a few soon to be
dead candidates but sadly it’s not a good day for death. So, they brainstorm possible fixes. Philip
suggests throwing out an SOS through the FBI so the team can find them while Trevor proposes
extending the life of the unit with a supplemental power supply to buy them time.

MacLaren gives the go ahead and leaves to speak with traveler 3185/Officer Boyd. Carly does
not think this is a good idea and she is right. Office Boyd is not happy to see MacLaren. He is
breaking protocol 6 and unless he has been authorized by the director to talk to her he needs to
step away. She’s got nothing more to say other than: In the absence of a clear course of action
you await instruction from the director via messenger or traveler. She doesn’t know where the
team that’s supposed to take the antimatter is and she’s not supposed to know. That is why they
are compartmentalized. She ends her advice giving with ”Shit happens” and ”Get it right”.

Major Gleason and Dr. Delaney are in their own dilly of a pickle when he notifies her that there
was an explosion which put his driver into a coma but it wasn’t as big as it should have been. It
should have been in the megaton range and he speculates that he didn’t have the material at all.
Either it never existed or she held onto it. She speculates that he stole it to set off bombs on an
island. They agree to disagree and Major Gleason demands that they speak again later.

Over in David’s world, he’s having lunch at a diner with another client and he sees on the
news that Marcy nailed her commuter plane crash prediction. He dials the number of the cell
phone he gave her with questions but she once again does not answer them. Before she can hang
up though, Philip is electrocuted after shorting out a circuit connected to the antimatter because
of his shaking withdrawal hands. David hears Marcy give Philip CPR over the phone before it
dies. Luckily, Philip does not die but he did cause some trouble. His circuit shorting didn’t add
any time to the life of the unit. He lost them time and as Trevor states they don’t have much left.

The traveler’s brainstorm possible fixes from the beginning. Trevor can’t make another power
supply in the few hours they have. Carly wants to drive it out of town but Philip has a better
idea. Bring the antimatter back to where it was created. The whole facility was designed to hold
antimatter for an unlimited amount of time. Philip hacks into their main computer system. He
can shut down their security and shut down their power but flooding the place will be most
beneficial. So, they start prepping to make it rain. As Marcy and Philip suit up, she reveals that
her host was an intellectually disabled woman in the care of the state which he considers a
huge problem. She retorts that she is dealing with it like he is dealing with his withdrawal. She
encourages him to do a dose of drugs before they depart ’cause his shaky hands are a liability.

The travelers arrive at the facility with the antimatter disguised as cleaners there to soak

9



Travelers Episode Guide

up the flooding in the building. Philip scans the area where they need to be and reports that
it is clear except that it’s not clear whatsoever. It’s got Delaney pointing a gun right at Trevor,
MacLaren and Carly. On a more positive note, it’s also got Marcy pointing a gun at Delaney
from behind. Delaney assumes the traveler’s are in cahoots with Major Gleason but MacLaren
is straight up honest and explains that they stole it from Gleason to prevent the explosion and
prevent the military from building the most powerful weapon of mass destruction in history.
Delaney is impressed by their portable containment unit and after MacLaren shows her his FBI
credentials she starts to ease up. Unfortunately, Gleason shows up to ruin the antimatter party.
In order to get rid of him, Delaney puts on quite a performance and pretends that he was right.
The material never existed. He smugly quips that he enjoyed that confession and wants her to
continue her work. As soon as he’s outta there, Trevor works his techy magic and the explosion
is kaput.

But, it’s not entirely over. Delaney calls bullshit on them being from the FBI and is confident
that Trevor’s technology does not exist. MacLaren tells Delaney that this won’t be the last she’ll
hear from them and to keep the antimatter out of the hands of the military and off the front
page of the newspaper. The team calls it a day as per usual and clock out. Trevor, who missed
a science test the day before, returns home to a disappointed mother. Marcy is handed a cup of
tea by David who is pleased to hear that she will go to the hospital with him. Carly apologizes
to her babysitter for being late and consoles her crying infant. MacLaren’s wife Kat is thrilled to
hear that her husband is free for the evening which is not a frequent occurrence. When she goes
to pour them a glass of wine, MacLaren answers a knock at the door. His guest is an adolescent
child dressed up as a Girl Guide, but she’s not there to sell him cookies. She is a messenger
from the director who wants MacLaren to know that the mission outcome was acceptable in light
of extenuating factors but further breach of protocols may result in punitive action. Kat returns
with wine and reminds the little girl that she already bought some cookies.
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Aleksander

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Monday October 31, 2016
Writer: Tara Armstrong, Mika Collins
Director: Andy Mikita
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: Ian Tracey (Ray), Arnold Pinnock (Walt Forbes), Jennifer Spence (Grace
Day), Chilton Crane (Cathy Whiteman), Adrian Hough (Allan White-
man), Leah Cairns (Kathryn MacLaren), J. Alex Brinson (Jeff Con-
niker), Alyssa Lynch (Rene Bellamy), Dylan Playfair (Kyle), Zack Lavoie
(Stephen), Karen Khunkhun (Reporter), David Bloom (Priest), Bron-
wen Smith (Marion), Gaalen Engen (Greg), Beatrice Kitsos (11 Year
Old Girl), Cody Davis (10 Year Old Boy), David Raynolds (Aleksander
/ Patrick), Kylee Dawson (Shy Girl), Steve Makaj (Police Sergeant),
Shanel Pratap (News Anchor #2)

Summary: Fellow travelers are placed in jeopardy after a team member suffers
guilt feelings due to the weight of not being able to prevent future
deaths.

When a traveler, who is supposed to give
MacLaren and his team their next as-
signment, is a no show (which is once
again communicated via a disturbing,
possessed kid riding a bike at night) rebel
Phillip suggests that they still stop the
bus destined to hit the host body meant
for this traveler. Carly is the first to object
as she reminds him of protocol 3 which
states that the they cannot interfere un-
der any circumstances. Phillip does not
like this objection and for legit reasons.

He’s had a rough go of existing in the 21st century. He arrived in his bod in the very same mo-
ment that his host’s pal was overdosing and he had to resist in helping that dude. That traumatic
memory bumbles to the surface at the start of the episode when he attends the funeral of said
dude whose mom is not happy to see him. As Philip attempts to apologize, give his condolences
and offer flowers she chastises him for not calling 911 before her son passed.

Prior to the chastising, the priest presiding over the funeral speaks of how death is an un-
expected visitor and how there is a time for every event under heaven including a time to die
and we must trust in god’s plan for each one of us. Well, Phillip isn’t super into ”god’s plan” and
I repeat: for legit reasons. On top of his roomie’s demise, he had to stand by as the detective
who was intent on arresting him had a heart attack. And on top of that he’s been having some
serious existential, depressive thoughts which according to doctor Marcy is a side effect of heroin
withdrawal. Philip is trying to ward off his depression and shaky hands by secretly taking small
doses of the drug which is also doctor Marcy prescribed but that is easier said than done. Philip
knows one of Marcy’s secrets as well which is that her host’s body was intellectually disabled
and she recently had a seizure. Her social worker David wanted her to see a doctor about it but
she doesn’t need to ’cause she is a doctor. She’s relieved to discover that during her stay at the
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hospital she got an MRI done and if she can take a look at those results she’ll be able to diagnose
herself. Phillip does her a solid upon request and agrees to download the file.

Marcy and Philip have such a sweet, mutually beneficial relationship. She brings him gro-
ceries and syringes and he hacks into systems for her. MacLaren on the other hand is not
pleased with Phillip’s disobedient behaviour and MacLaren’s wife is not pleased with MacLaren’s
change in personality. She’s specifically irritated by his want to be vegan and not wear ties. Ma-
cLaren’s personality change persists as he arrives at work and his FBI partner is annoyed by
him forgetting about their weekend squash date, forgetting his computer password and having
perfect aim at the shooting range. Trevor’s girlfriend is feeling a similar frustration. She doesn’t
get why her BF is sitting at a different table in the cafeteria with an popular girl who she hates.
Renee expresses her hate of unpopular girl by shoving her to the ground and breaking her phone
which in turn frustrates Trevor. In the principal’s office, he rudely tells Renee that she is NOT
nice but she disagrees. She’s nice to him and is curious to find out what is wrong with the love of
her life. Suddenly he adores creamed corn and wants to be kind to people and that is terrifying.
Carly’s abusive ex Jeff is terrified as well to discover some security camera footage of a small
woman (Marcy) nonchalantly beating four big guys to a bloody pulp. The similarities continue as
he recalls Carly (small woman) beating him (big guy) to a bloody pulp.

Present day residents are becoming more and more perplexed by the travelers, and David
is no exception. He is shaken by a visit from Jeff who shows him photos of Marcy kicking ass
and he does not think his cryptic guest should stay with him any longer. She disagrees and
remains where she is. Marcy sure is steadfast and stubborn isn’t she? Philip possesses those
qualities too. No wonder they get along. Despite objections from his fellow travelers, he takes it
upon himself to right his wrongs and the wrongs of others. He gets his gambling addict lawyer
to make a couple bets and then drop off a gracious gift of thousands of dollars to the mom of
his overdosed roomie. He also starts sending in anonymous tips to the FBI about violent crimes
being committed around town which he keeps track of by writing ’em down on the window-door
of their hideout using a sharpie. When MacLaren is told about the anonymous tips by his partner
he does not immediately link the information back to his disobedient follower from the future.

He doesn’t link the information back to Philip even when Phillip lies about receiving a message
from the director and claims that they’ve got a new assignment. MacLaren does question why
Phillip was contacted and he wasn’t but his skepticism is not a priority. Completing the mission
is his only priority. Carly tosses each traveler a slick, powerful weapon from her collection of
artillery that she stores under her couch and they hop into their black vehicles to alter history.
The mission that Philip fabricated is rescuing an abducted Romanian boy who is soon to be
murdered and who Phillip says obviously must be important to the future. The boy is being held
captive by a tobacco smoking couple at a country house in the middle of nowhere. Although
the couple welcomes MacLaren and Carly into their home with a friendly demeanor as soon
the travelers enter they begin to worry when they see a pair of children’s running shoes, smell
something foil in the air, and hear the husband yell at the wife in anger for simply speaking.

As Carly and MacLaren interrogate the couple, Marcy and Philip enter through the back and
investigate the basement while Trevor keeps watch outside. They discover that the foil smell is a
chicken coup in the cellar but that is by far not the most horrifying discovery they make. As Philip
digs into the dirt ground he eventually unearths the bones and shoes of a previous ten-year-
old child’s body. Back upstairs, MacLaren simultaneously meets the owner of the other pair of
child’s shoes. When the wife says that those belong to their son ”Patrick” the husband summons
”Patrick” to chat with the ”police man”. Surprisingly, ”Patrick” does appear and surprisingly again
MacLaren speaks Romanian. He chats with the home-schooled boy in the foreign language so
the couple can’t understand and learns that ”Patrick” is not his real name, these are not his real
parents and that this isn’t a traveler mission at all. The boy returns to speaking English when
the director takes possession of his malleable brain and sends through a message to MacLaren
that his team is off mission and they need to abort immediately.

MacLaren commands them to exit but Philip refuses to do so. As the husband pulls out a
gun, Phillip grabs hold of the Romanian boy with his own weapon in hand. This results in an
offscreen shootout, the couple being killed by Carly and MacLaren and Philip being shot as well.
Trevor carries a wounded Philip to the car while Marcy removes traces of blood from the house
and MacLaren makes the boy promise to lie to the FBI. The child thanks him in Romanian which
warms his heart but does not eliminate his stress. When a squad of law enforcement officials
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arrive on the scene along with MacLaren’s partner, he uses Philip’s anonymous tips as an excuse
for how he ended up at that country home in the first place. Luckily, it was an address on the
list that his follower sent in. Unluckily, his partner also has the address of where the tips are
coming from which is the traveler’s hideout. Luckily again though, the agent informs MacLaren
of this before he actually checks it out allowing MacLaren to do the ”checking out” instead.

When he does disembark at the hideout, he finds his crew using futuristic tools to do some
major medical treatment on Philip who they realize has been scrawling the deaths of the innocent
on their wall-door using a sharpie. MacLaren is not pleased once again that his disobedient
follower has been sending in anonymous tips or that he wasn’t aware of his disobedient follower’s
heroin addiction. He asks why the director would choose an addict as a host and the group
answers that the historical records said it was his first time using and that his parents must
have been in denial about it. Marcy then admits to surreptitiously attempting to get a handle on
Phillip’s depression and shaky hands and withdrawal. MacLaren is forgiving and understanding
of the traveler’s situation and he instructs Marcy to wean Philip off of the drug.

Sometime later, Philip is alone in the hideout healing up and is visited by Trevor who comes
with delicious fast food and soft drinks. He’s expanded beyond creamed corn and is now enjoying
the intoxicating aroma of cheeseburgers. As the duo dine, Trevor has a look at Philip’s permanent
list of upcoming deaths on the window-door and is scared to recognize one of the names. He
points to the letters written in sharpie as his raspy voice utters ”I know this person”.
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Hall

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Monday November 7, 2016
Writer: Pat Smith
Director: Martin Wood
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: Ian Tracey (Ray), Arnold Pinnock (Walt Forbes), Jennifer Spence (Grace
Day), Louis Ferreira (Rick Hall), Leah Cairns (Kathryn MacLaren),
J. Alex Brinson (Jeff Conniker), William MacDonald (Gary Holden),
Teryl Rothery (Patricia Holden), Dylan Playfair (Kyle), Garfield Wil-
son (Carter), Douglas Chapman (Luca), Kis Yurij (Russian #1), Jason
William Day (Russian #2), Angela Moore (Carol), Kelsey Wheeler (Dad)

Summary: A more-experienced team of travelers want to join forces with Ma-
cLaren’s group, which results in a challenge to his leadership.

Last week’s episode ended with Trevor
pointing to a name on Philip’s wall of up-
coming human deaths and revealing that
he knows one of the humans who will
soon be dead. Sadly, we did not learn who
that soon-to-be-dead human is. Instead,
we were introduced to a few new charac-
ters who each possess the consciousness
of a traveler and the host body of some-
one who was once on Philip’s list of the
recently deceased.

But we don’t know at first that this trio of gents are travelers. They appear to be a classic
gang of bad criminals, or more specifically drug dealers and/or dudes purchasing some illegal
car parts and/or a group of normal pals hanging outdoors at the wrong place and really at the
wrong time. MacLaren and his FBI partner Forbes aren’t sure which one they are but it’s clear
that these boys are up to no good, which is why the episode begins with the agents watching
in the distance via binoculars and a camera as the boys wait to make a shady deal. When the
Russian salesmen they’re buying from show up, the deal does not go down smoothly. After a
backpack filled with money is handed over, shots are fired, bodies are hit by cars, and bloods are
shed.

The trio of buyers manage to flee and avoid the wrath of MacLaren and Forbes but one of
the Russians is left wounded on the ground. When MacLaren approaches him, he is shocked to
hear a message from the director expel from the mouth of the dying man. Apparently, support is
required for a fellow traveler and specific directions need to be followed. MacLaren executes an
escape plan by lying once again to Forbes. He vows to chase after the crooks who got away while
responsible Forbes stays behind and calls for backup. MacLaren hops in his car, rings Philip and
Marcy and requests that they join him on the urgent mission. MacLaren needs Philip to find the
location using the messenger’s coordinates and he needs Marcy to meet him at the location with
her medical kit. Unfortunately, Philip is still recovering from his own gunshot wound so he can’t
participate but Marcy picks up Carly and her large collection of weapons on the way.

MacLaren is shocked for a second time when he arrives at the location to discover that the
traveler he needs to assist is one of the dudes from the crime scene. He explains who he is
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but their guns are reluctant to believe him. They wonder how an adult could survive receiving
a message from the director without it killing him. MacLaren explains further that it did kill
him but he was already dying. Hello! Eventually they back down since their injured bud Luca is
minutes from perishing and their medic has already perished so they could benefit from Marcy’s
skills. When MacLaren asks what happened with their deal, Mr. Hall, the leader of this traveler
squad, gives a synopsis. They were on a mission to acquire a component from Russian travelers
and deliver it to another team for testing. The Russian’s historian was dead so they were out of
cash and Hall’s boys had to finance them in exchange for the handoff. But, those Russian babies
got real greedy and went rogue. They wanted to keep the money and the component so they could
sell it. But, in the process they seriously busted the damn thing like a bunch of spoiled idiots.

MacLaren is shocked for a third round when he learns that traveler teams can and will turn on
each other. Carter, the final member of Hall’s crew, scoffs that the FBI agent must be new. After
Mr. Hall and MacLaren share in a quick petty argument about how badly the component was
damaged and how unreliable that plan was, Marcy and Carly breeze in with the medical goods.
But, those goods aren’t as good as they need to be in order to save the life of hemorrhaging Luca
or internally bleeding Carter, who we discover has fatal health issues as well. Marcy wants to
take both of them to the hospital but temperamental Mr. Hall is not having any of it. See, the
pair of almost deceased vigilantes are wanted by the police making Dr. Marcy their only option.

As Marcy takes a closer look at her patient, MacLaren takes a call from Forbes who informs
him that they’ve got three dead bodies back at the scene. MacLaren then does what he does best
and lies to his partner about not knowing the whereabouts of the car he was pursuing. Marcy
can’t locate the bullet inside Luca and she promises Hall that if she operates she will kill him.
But, she has an idea. Carter is coughing up blood because his lungs are full of blood and he will
guaranteed not survive the night. Thus, they can use Carter’s blood to save Luca’s life! Brilliant!
Or not brilliant, according to Mr. Hall. Marcy assures him that both men will be kaput if they
don’t go this route, which means that Mr. Hall has a very important, very critical decision to
make as the leader of this unit. Thankfully, he decides correctly and they sacrifice one to rescue
the other. MacLaren heads out to throw Forbes off their scent as Marcy operates through the
night.

Meanwhile, Trevor is having a totally different kind of day. He’s enjoying a joyful morning run
at school with his bestie by his side. Trevor is super fast but his throwing arm is less impressive.
And his aim isn’t the only thing that needs improvement. His teacher, Ms. Day, visits him on
the track to reveal that Trevor’s parents will be meeting with her to discuss his grades later that
day and she’d like Trevor to join. Carly also has an unexpected family meeting when she returns
home to pick up her baby and her abusive ex Jeff drops by to chat. He tries to prevent her from
driving off but a swift kick to his groin allows Carly to scoot right by him. But before getting
behind the wheel she reminds him that if he wants to see his kid he’s gotta pay child support.

Jeff can’t comprehend how Carly has changed so drastically in a short period of time. Across
town, Philip is praying for an equally drastic change in his life. As he sits in the hideout, going
through withdrawal and healing his injury, he receives an unwelcome social call from his former
lawyer who comes bearing percocets. As Philip swallows a handful of pills, the lawyer has a
look at his wall of accurate fatality predictions. Philip, who can barely move from his chair, does
a mediocre job of shrugging it off like it’s nothing but his previous legal representation knows
better. He sees the dates for months from now and guesses that it’s the gambling metrics. This
is how Philip aces all of his sports prophecies. Wrong again, law man. But, his incorrect analysis
of the calendar-to-come is enough to blackmail Philip into giving the gambling addict more bets.

After Marcy finishes a stellar night of surgical work, she heads home and encounters an
undesirable interrogation as well. Everybody seems to be struggling with one of these unfortunate
convos and Marcy’s is from the same guest that Carly kicked in the groin earlier on in the episode.
Yes, it’s Carly’s abusive ex Jeff who is taking advantage of his police officer gig to get some info
out of Marcy that he can link back to Carly. When she tries to dodge his questioning about her
beating down those four dudes in that parking lot, Jeff uses another tactic. He inquiries as to
why Marcy is living with her social worker if she is as fine as she says she is and does she know
that if said social worker is found guilty of fraternizing with a client, especially one who has
developmental issues, he could be terminated. Marcy doesn’t take the bait of his threats though.
Instead she takes a call and bids farewell to police officer Jeff.

After saying goodbye to Jeff, she then says hello to Hall and her patient Luca who has foolishly
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opened up his stitches by having a raging fit of night terrors when he was very unconscious.
Marcy sews him back up as MacLaren attempts to concoct a distraction for Forbes who is such
an excellent cop that he’s traced Hall and Luca to exactly where they currently reside. Also, he’s
already got a warrant so they can suit up and head down there immediately to crack some illegal-
car-part-buying skulls. Luckily, MacLaren is able to contact Marcy in time for Hall and Luca to
disappear. Trevor wants to attempt his own disappearing act and vanish from the meeting with
his teacher and his parents where he is being held prisoner. He manages to rapidly fade away by
promising to quit football, focus on the sciences and not listen in to the private conversation he
knows Ms. Day needs to have with his parentals. Smooth Trevor. Very smooth.

When MacLaren and Forbes reach their destination, guns in hand, they slowly circle the
building before entering. They’re joined by a few sidekick agents as well. MacLaren delivers an
Oscar winning performance as he sprints towards the entrance with a fake look of panic and
worry and O.M.G. But, when Forbes grabs hold of the doorknob and a rather large explosion
goes off, almost killing several agents, MacLaren’s look of panic and worry and O.M.G. is quite
authentic because he had no clue that was gonna happen. As Carly drives the getaway car with
her baby on board, she rips into Hall for not warning MacLaren about the explosion since you
know, he almost died. When MacLaren storms into the traveler’s hideout he isn’t pleased either,
evidenced by his yelling at Hall, who stands by that he had to destroy their base of operations
and everything inside it so the FBI couldn’t track them. MacLaren does not accept this response.

The agent’s anger only increases when Trevor says that fixing the component won’t be easy
but they can do it and Hall rudely replies ”You damn well better”. After Carly settles a screaming
match between the two leaders, Trevor and Phillip get to work on the fixing and MacLaren and
Carly get some air... alone. Wink wink wink. They share a real cute moment when MacLaren
rattles on about how the explosion will not help in deescalating the situation and Carly adorably
contrasts that by rattling on about how she’s gotta call her babysitter. They very slightly touch
hands before they separate once more like Romeo and Juliet. Then Marcy shares a touching
moment too with Luca when she chats with him about his night terrors; something that her
brother suffered with as well. This inspires her to ask a question of Hall. She discloses that when
she was young there was an emergency evacuation in her shelter block and she was separated
from her brother. In a not so subtle way, she’s of course wondering if maybe possibly maybe Luca
could be her biological bro? And this mission is actually a fun family reunion?

But grumpy Mr. Hall isn’t interested in discussing familial bonds. He reminds Marcy of Pro-
tocol 2 which states that the future should be left in the past. He then launches into a speech
about how to do this job and stay alive you need to be focused and this team is NOT focused.
Hall refers to them as a bunch of tourists as he criticizes Trevor for being worried about his
parents grounding him, Carly for bringing her infant on the mission, Philip for being a junkie,
and MacLaren for not knowing which side he’s on. Hall thinks their priorities are out of whack
and Carly thinks his attitude is out of whack. The two combative travelers have a tense stare
down until Hall yields.

MacLaren’s wife Kat kind of agrees with Hall in a sense. When she drops by the FBI with
Chinese food for her workaholic husband who’s burning the midnight oil, she’s understanding
of his long hours at the office. However, she’s curious as to what’s going on with their sex life.
It’s been an awfully long time and she fears that work isn’t the only thing that she’s sharing
MacLaren with. Philip is having relationship problems too, but not with his wife, with his lawyer,
who did procured a safe house where Hall and Luca can chill for a bit but wants a big payout in
return. He demands to get 8% commission, as well as the rent and some bets for tomorrow. An
annoyed Philip agrees to 10% commission and no bets to get his selfish lawyer off his back.

Marcy continues her pursuit to discover if Luca is her consciousness relative when the two of
them take a lovely stroll around town to prevent his blood from clotting and she casually inquires
about his host’s family. Back at the hideout, Trevor succeeds in repairing the component and
MacLaren informs Hall that they have a safehouse for him and it’s time for the grump to go. Mr.
Hall as per usual thinks otherwise. He not only wants to stay, he also wants to lead the team.
The squabble is put on hold when Forbes calls MacLaren to give his partner an update on what
information he’s confirmed. He IDed all of the dead bodies and he’s got a picture of Luca strolling
around town with an unidentified blonde lady. Wuh oh! MacLaren fibs about a lead he’s got on
the ”missing” Hall, promptly hangs up the phone and returns to reiterating that it’s time for the
grump to go. But Mr. Hall not only wants to stay, he also wants MacLaren to kill Forbes.
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The FBI agent is too good at his job and Hall thinks he’s jeopardizing the mission so the
only solution is to take him out. He intimidates Maclaren by boasting about his seniority and
convinces him to do what needs to be done and deal with Forbes as he and Luca take care of
the component drop off. None of the traveler’s are keen on the idea of murdering an innocent,
heroic human to save a grumpy asshole but MacLaren moves forward with the deadly plan and
tells Forbes to meet him at a mysterious address. When the partners unite, Forbes takes the
lead in exploring the area as MacLaren, gun in hand, walks behind him, mentally and physically
preparing to savagely assasinate his new awesome friend. The suspense builds and builds and
builds until finally a black rental car pulls up and unexpectedly the traveler leader yells out ”FBI!”
But, who’s in the black rental car you ask? Only Mr. Hall and Luca, who were 100% sure that
MacLaren would come through and continue to fall in line or else they’d take him out too. Looks
like the agent is full of more surprises than Hall predicted because he does the exact opposite.

MacLaren doesn’t kill Forbes. He doesn’t fall in line. He isn’t taken out. He arrests Hall and
Luca and gets the grump to finally go. And that drop off they were supposed to make is handled
by Carly and Trevor with the help of Philip who contacts the traveler team they need to connect
with and has them meet at a different address. Each traveller heads home as they usually do
after a highly dramatic day of mission completing and before bed, a topless MacLaren sends them
an emotional message via their neck phones. He sadly reflects on having to turn on a traveller,
he thanks them for sticking by his side, he mutters that they’ll find out soon if they made the
right decision and he encourages them to get some rest. They each listen in as they ruminate
about their host’s lives. A tired Marcy longingly stares at a photo of her and David. A studious
Trevor reads a science textbook. A determined Philip wipes away his death predictions from the
door-window. And a topless Carly kisses the shoulder of MacLaren who she is lying in bed with.
She gently calms her beau’s nerves by declaring that she believes they did do the right thing.
This turns MacLaren on so much that even though he should leave and get back to his wife who
was totally correct about him cheating on her, he just can’t stop kissing sexy Carly.
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Room 101

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Monday November 14, 2016
Writer: Brad Wright
Director: Martin Wood
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: Arnold Pinnock (Walt Forbes), Kristine Cofsky (Officer Boyd), Eileen
Pedde (Mom), Andre Tricoteux (Captor), Melanie Papalia (Beth), Yas-
meene Ball (Charlotte), Kelsey Wheeler (Dad), Lyova Beckwitt (Jack-
son), Adrien Dorval (Yard Worker)

Summary: MacLaren scrambles to uncover the mystery of the team’s sudden dis-
appearance, only to find he is on his own.

In this episode, our gang meet another
trio of fellow travelers, but this time they
are not unruly. They’re cooperative, pro-
fessional and a family. MacLaren, Carly,
Marcy, Philip and Trevor meet this new
team at the exact spot where their con-
sciousnesses arrive, which happens to be
a winding parking lot in the middle of the
afternoon. The dad, who was behind the
wheel of the vehicle almost drove it off the
upper level of the lot but luckily the fu-
ture arrives just in time. When our five
fave travelers greet their coworkers they
discover that this family of three is actu-
ally a family of four and there was meant

to be a fourth traveler joining them in the body of a teenage daughter. The father, mother, and
brother introduce themselves by their traveler numbers as the panicked young girl asks for an
explanation about what is happening with her fam and who are these random strangers. Ma-
cLaren makes eye contact with his foursome as they all realize that there was a ”misfire” aka one
future consciousness didn’t make the trip.

MacLaren offers to escort Charlotte, said young girl, to her grandmother’s house so her mom,
dad and bro can save a whole bunch of lives in less than 48 hours. Unfortunately Charlotte was
this traveler team’s certified historian who appears to be responsible for tripling their funds via
gambling so they have enough cash to survive. Philip takes on the position instead. He hands
them a wad of dollar bills and advises that they put it on a particular horse in a particular
race. Trevor hands off the device to the three relatives to kickstart the assignment and MacLaren
heads towards his vehicle. A few minutes later, Philip, Marcy, Carly and Trevor are cruising
around town in their automobile as they chat about the frightening past possibility that they
could have all been ”misfires” themselves. Trevor informs Carly that 30% of the original wave of
travelers were misfires and then asks her if she still would have done it knowing that big risk.

But, before Carly can reply a giant pick-up truck smashes into the side of the car knocking
the four passengers unconscious. When Trevor and Carly wake-up they are tied to wheelchairs
and sitting within fenced cages in a dark room that has quite the leak. They’re connected to
intravenous drips for hydration and apparently catheters are disposing of those liquids for them.
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Carly is bleeding from a head injury, Trevor has a wicked bad cut on his cheek and their commu-
nication devices have been removed from their bods so they have no way to contact MacLaren.
But, they hope that regardless of that major problem, their fearless leader will triumph against
all odds and rescue them. Trevor and Carly turn to see a still unconscious Marcy and an also
still unconscious Philip in cages next to them. The four travelers are being held prisoner by a
mysterious someone or something. Whoever it is, they aren’t pro-traveler.

When agent Forbes strolls into the FBI office he is not pleased with MacLaren who missed an
important court date in the AM and he isn’t buying the excuse that his wife Katherine needed
him to pick up an antique chair for a client. MacLaren wholeheartedly apologizes but Forbes
isn’t buying that either and neither will the angry prosecutor who was rather upset with the
agent’s absence. We return to the traveler hostages to see Carly struggling to break free from
her chains and a silent unnamed man entering to take a continuing to be unconscious Philip
from his cage and into another room. Eventually Marcy comes to and whimpers in pain from
whiplash. Moments later the silent unnamed man reappears and this time he wheels Carly from
her cage, through the exit and into a larger space that features a retro 90s inspired television
set. The dude doing the wheelchair pushing and pulling sits Carly in front of the TV so it can do
some interrogating. A question pops up on screen that reads ”Who have you told?” in all caps.

Carly calls out for clarification to the man who brought her there but he isn’t helpful at all
since he doesn’t seem to have a voice. After ”Who have you told?” flashes for a second time and
Carly proceeds to not answer for a second time a new query appears and this one has photos.
The TV wonders if Carly knows who three men are: Mr. Hall, MacLaren, and Jeff. She claims to
have never seen the first two but identifies the third as the father of her child. Then comes the
scariest question thus far: ”When are you from?” Uh oh. It appears that whoever non-speaking-
guy works for knows who the travelers are and is trying to gather more info. Carly plays dumb
as the qs keep coming. ”What are the protocols?” surfaces seconds before the screen shows the
traveler another image, but this time it’s a moving picture of her baby boy.

She then hysterically threatens to kill the television if it hurts her child. Speaking of hysterical
guardians, Marcy’s social worker David is also in a panic about his client not returning home
the night before. He bought groceries to make the dinner of her choosing, which he informs
her on a voicemail, and she not only misses the meal she misses sleeping in the apartment.
He’s so worried that he grabs hold of MacLaren’s business card which was given to him by the
actual MacLaren back in episode one and heads out to pay the FBI agent a visit. David, thinking
that Marcy works for the Federal Bureau of Investigation because she vaguely lied about that,
wants to know if the FBI is aware that Marcy is missing. MacLaren was not aware of this and
is immediately concerned. He gets David to leave his number with an assistant as MacLaren
attempts to reach out to this team via their communication devices. He receives no responses.

Trevor and Marcy are meditating in their shackles as Philip is rolled back into his mini-prison.
He is very relieved to know that he isn’t alone since he woke up from his slumber with no pals
in sight. He isn’t relieved though to learn that he’s going through withdrawal again and, like the
other travelers, is suffering a great deal. While they suffer together MacLaren attempts to locate
them by using all of his resources at the FBI which his assistant finds extremely irritating. When
MacLaren exits the building to do his own private search he bumps into David who’s been waiting
outside for the past ten minutes and would like an update on Marcy’s whereabouts. MacLaren
explains that if her face shows up anywhere there’s a close circuit TV camera they’ll know and
David should just go home. Across town, Carly is heading back into her new home aka her tiny
fenced in area. Before silent unnamed dude departs she requests that he wipe the blood from
her eye because it’s obstructing her vision and he kindly obliges. Aw, so sweet!

When Carly informs her colleagues about what the TV asked her, specifically ”Where are you
from?”, the team becomes distraught as they realize that the screen knows what’s up. Silent
unnamed dude reappears to bestow another sweet gesture onto another traveler in need. He
gives Philip a hit of heroin via his IV drip and Marcy insists that he has injected him with too
much and that he’ll overdose. Unfortunately, Marcy isn’t able to provide an official diagnosis on
because she’s the next traveler in line for some serious retro 90s television interrogation.

The TV begins the interview as it usually does. ”When are you from?”, etc, but then it does
something unpredicted. The screen shows David receiving a call from ”Marcy” informing him that
she’s doing okay and he need not worry. This is followed by footage of a very high Philip being shot
to death, the shock of which gives her a violent seizure. She soon discovers though that it was
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an illusion because the real Philip remains in his wheelchair as he rambles on about the bleak
future. A time when you could taste metal in the air and the drinking water had been recycled
so many times it could never be made pure again. His rambling reveals that the second dose
of heroin he received wasn’t heroin. It was a strange concoction designed for someone who has
been modified to be a historian and it’s resulting in memories pouring in like a flood. Memories
like shelter 41 collapsing and killing thousands seconds after an alarm bell rung.

But, if the mysterious folks in charge of this abduction hoped to get information out of Philip
via this concoction they were likely disappointed when all Philip provides them with is a collection
of famous quotes and unbridled madness. Trevor is no use to them either. He spends his time
in front of the TV cracking jokes and being as difficult as possible. MacLaren is making progress
though on his end. His assistant locates the car that the travelers were in when the truck crashed
into them. It’s in a junkyard. MacLaren learns that the airbags did go off so there’s hope that
his travelers are still alive somewhere. He progresses even further when he meets up with office
Boyd, a fellow traveler, at the police station where she works. Although he is breaking protocol
again by speaking with her she’s more empathetic this time since his entire team has disappeared
off the face of the earth. She suggests that maybe the director took them out for whatever reason
and reminds him that the future holds the power. It’s not all bad news for MacLaren though.
Boyd does offer to back him up if and when and hopefully he sniffs them out.

The traveler disappearance halts the mission that MacLaren was supposed to accomplish
with the family members he met in the beginning of the episode. He meets the dad, mom and son
travelers on a rooftop to inform them that the plan will not be moving forward. This means that
hundreds of people will die, possibly including Carly, Marcy, Trevor and Philip if they don’t find
an escape route real soon. Luckily, Carly has an idea; an insane idea but an idea nonetheless.
When Marcy is placed back in her cage Carly launches into step one of her scheme which involves
requesting again that the silent unnamed dude wipe the blood from her eye. When he reaches
in to do so through a hole in the fence, she bites hard onto his arm. So hard in fact that blood
begins to spill and spill and spill from his veins. She continues sinking her teeth into his skin
until he is lying on the ground, no longer breathing. It was an insane idea and it worked.

Carly executes her violent attack just in time too. As she’s doing her best vampire impression,
MacLaren simultaneously pinpoints the exact location of his team. He goes charging in, guns
ablaze with office Boyd by his side and stumbles upon a once more unconscious traveler four-
some, with the silent unnamed dude lacking a pulse nearby. He releases them from their prisons
and holds a weak Carly in his arms, who is heartbroken to learn that the mission did not go
forward. She suspects that preventing the mission was why the travelers were captured.
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Helios-685

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Monday November 21, 2016
Writer: Rebecca Hales
Director: Helen Shaver
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: David Lewis (Major Gleason), Kyra Zagorsky (Dr. Delaney), Karin Kono-
val (Mrs. Bloom), Leah Cairns (Kathryn MacLaren), William MacDon-
ald (Gary Holden), Teryl Rothery (Patricia Holden), Giacomo Baessato
(Private Wilson), Kevin McNulty (Earl), Aaron Hutchinson (Security
Guard), Douglas Chapman (Luca), Milo Shandel (Pastor), Emy Aneke
(Sergeant), Brenda Matthews (Becky), Curtis Lum (Morrison), Shawn
Brown (Omar (Taxi Driver)), Nathan Witte (Traveler Security Guard),
Sian Sladen (Nurse), Mathew Yanagiya (EMT Traveler), Clay Virtue
(Black Op #1), Lloyd Adams (Black Op #2), Duane Dickinson (Black
Op #3), Brent Connolly (Black Op #4)

Summary: The team undertakes a mission to stop a cataclysmic event that could
impact the course of history.

In the last episode Marcy, Carly, Trevor
and Philip were being held hostage in
fenced cages in a dark basement by
an unseen power that interrogated them
about their missions via a 90s retro tele-
vision set that spoke in caps lock. This
unseen power attempted to brainwash
the team by showing them false images of
loved ones in danger on the screen. And
in episode 6 we see another group of vul-
nerable folks whose minds are also being
controlled by an unseen power, but not
the same one as the travelers. This in-
fluential figure is god or more accurately
a cult leader yelling about the upcoming

rapture and the group of vulnerable folks are his elderly believers who are about to commit sui-
cide. As they sit by the water, where the leader first welcomed them into his flock, the soon-to-be
deceased followers raise their glasses filled with apple-juice-like poison and await their rise to
heaven where they’ll get to chill with Jesus Christ.

But, of course, they never get to meet old JC because moments before they sip, they each
grab hold of their heads and shriek in pain. Why? ’Cause they’re becoming travelers of course!
When the consciousness transfer is complete without any accidental misfires, the fresh crew of
heroes get up and at them. As they march in a line away from the waterfront, the leader stops by
a garbage bin to pick up a lunchbox, which we can only imagine is a super important package.

The episode proceeds to switch gears with an update about the condition of that soldier who
was injured in that fake antimatter explosion way back in episode two. Through blurred focus
we see that he’s been hospitalized and when he wakes up with a large gasp he find his boss,
Major Gleason, standing beside his bed, who demands to know what happened the night of the
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explosion. His forgetful subordinate isn’t very helpful though and thinks that Gleason probably
saw more than he did since he was following behind. Remember how you lied about that Major?

Without realizing it, the soldier does become helpful when he reveals that a ”car came out
of nowhere and a woman walked out”. Hold up dude. What woman? I mean, we know what
woman (badass Carly obviously) but Gleason has no clue and he wants more of a clue. Thus, he
kickstarts an investigation into who that woman was and what that car was doing there.

After two scenes involving characters who aren’t our beloved travelers, we finally meet up with
our core cast of world savers, beginning with the commander of the squad, FBI agent MacLaren
who isn’t at the FBI office just yet. He has a sweet chat with his wife Kat about her craft of
repairing antique furniture before he heads to work. As she does some sanding, he poetically
expresses how impressed he is by her ability to take something broken and make it whole again.
Dishing out compliments like this is not normal behaviour from her husband but Kat enjoys it
nonetheless. What she doesn’t enjoy is him having to miss dinner once again.

MacLaren apologizes and departs to begin another day of mission accomplishing. Then we
catch up with Trevor who is attempting to teach his sexist father a lesson about gender equality
when his daddio forces his mom to change into a dress that he prefers. When his mother obliges
to avoid a fight, Trevor dishes out a compliment as well about how lovely she looked in the other
outfit. She’s touched by this and pecks his cheek as she gets into the car to drive out of town for
the night. When Trevor’s parents are out of sight Carly pulls up and he hops in the passenger
seat. And where are they headed? To the traveler hideout and headquarters of course to begin
their next assignment or more accurately to re-begin a past assignment since this is something
they started back in episode 2. You got it. The antimatter has returned!

MacLaren gives his condolences to his team about their rough condition post-capturing but
sadly the mission must go on, regardless of how bruised their bodies are. Getting rid of this
antimatter is apparently why they were specifically sent to the 21st since it triggers the beginning
of the fall of mankind. Therefore, they have to see it through to the end. In preparation, Dr. Marcy
injects her buds with something that will prevent their nervous systems from shutting down and
Trevor leads them in a traveler inspired prayer. I smell a recurring religious theme!

Meanwhile, the new-in-consciousness, old-in-age travelers have boarded a school bus to mi-
grate to their desired location and they’re injecting something sweet into their veins as well. Are
they participating in mission ”get rid of antimatter”? It’s unclear but what is clear is that Dr.
Delaney who is currently hosting the explosive material is 100% involved which she learns when
MacLaren sends her a curt text that he’ll be dropping by real soon. Delaney is surprised by how
soon when two aggressive men stroll in with a firm request that she come with them. Unfortu-
nately she doesn’t know that said aggressive men are not members of MacLaren’s team. They
work for Major Gleason. One of them stays behind to guard the antimatter as the other leads
Delaney away from her precious invention and towards a giant white warehouse where Gleason
resides. She’s shocked to learn that those were his goons but he’s not shocked to hear that she
was expecting someone else. Her shock continues when she is held for questioning.

As the busload of elderly travels cruises along the road so do MacLaren and Carly and their
van conversation is not an easy-breezy one. Carly is worried about not being able to protect her
son from harm and MacLaren tries to keep her focused on the present. When she asks if he’s
worried about his wife, he avoids answering and her jealousy grows. We take a break from the
lovers quarrel to meet another brand spanking new traveler who is literally sitting in their death
bed. The host’s name is Bloom and before her consciousness was replaced she was about to
receive the service of euthanasia. She rapidly changes her mind though and departs before the
deed is done. MacLaren and his team pull up to Dr. Delaney’s place of work disguised as cleaners
like in a previous episode... which episode? Episode two of course! See, Delaney was supposed to
have told security that there was another leak but because she was abducted by Major Gleason
she never got to do doing that. This explains why the guard on duty wasn’t informed about this
”leak” and refuses to let the travelers through the secure iron gates.

So, MacLaren takes matters into his own hands, zaps the guard unconscious with one of
his cool, futuristic dohookies and then Marcy does the same for the remaining two guards. The
other officers turn out to also be travelers and assist in getting rid of their comatosed buddies.
Philip notifies MacLaren that police and military radio signals are jammed outside the facility
and the wind direction is on target, which is for some reason extremely important. Now, all they
have to do is find Delaney and give her the antitoxin and explain what’s going on. Then comes
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another update: Carly’s reinforcements, which we learn are the busload of senior citizens, have
been stopped at the border because of an expired passport. When MacLaren and Marcy enter the
facility they discover that Delaney is also missing in action, which is odd because she said she’d
be there. But, they don’t really need her and go forward with the mission sans the doc.

Trevor and Phillip get right to work but not before discussing how since the present is con-
stantly changing, the wind direction could change too which would result in a toxic cloud being
blown towards the city. But, Philip affirms that a controlled release would allow for an evacu-
ation. After they wrap up their convo, it’s right back to work, that is until they’re interrupted
once more by a random man with a gun who wants them to put their hands up. He attempts
to radio out but his radio signal simply will not work, which Philip tells him repeatedly. Also,
that toxic cloud they spoke of is releasing in three... two... and the random man with a gun is
dead. Whatever Marcy injected the travelers with earlier on has prevented Trevor and Philip from
experiencing the same symptoms of being dead. As the team intended, a warning alarm goes off
in the building about an air quality alert and demands that all personnel evacuate or head to
their refuge areas.

Carly stands at the gates, pointing cars towards the exit as employees flee the scene. She
welcomes a cab with a new traveler in the backseat as well. Which new traveler you ask? The
older lady who decided to not be euthanized of course! Who is a rather accomplished engineer.
Carly huffs about her being late but she retorts that the ”device” hasn’t arrived yet so she isn’t
late. She gently grabs hold of Carly and they stroll arm in arm towards the facility. How cute!
Dr. Delaney is having less of a cute time being grilled by Major Gleason in a shadowy room.
Gleason accuses her of selling the antimatter to a foreign power like Russia or North Korea. She
denies the allegation and restates that what she created was a fraction of what she ”thought”
she created. He in turn threatens to charge her with aiding the enemy and espionage and she
in turn calls him an idiot. What a fun game of cat and cat these two are playing! Back at the
facility, the travelers are disappointed to learn that the missing Delaney put a biometric lock on
the material which requires her retina scan to unlock. Trevor tries to crack the code and Philip
begins his search for Delaney, who they suspect was taken against her will by the evil military.

And here comes the sassy Traveler 117 aka the elderly engineer who Carly escorted inside
aka Bloom. She kindly greets each member and gives them some juicy gossip from the future.
Allegedly MacLaren’s team is quite famous in the time to come, but not in a good way. They’re
rather controversial and folks are arguing for and against them in heated debates. Bloom also
discloses that it was she (among others) who located the travelers when they were taken prisoner
in the last episode. Unfortunately, she doesn’t know who took them prisoner though. Lastly,
she reminds the gang that if this mission is successful, this could have massive repercussions,
including an asteroid called Helios 685 being deflected. They would save thousands of lives and
drastically alter the course of humanity which would eliminate the illness, the shortages, and the
wars that manufactured their post-apocalyptic home. It could also eliminate them being born.

While the travelers process the idea of their consciousness never existing, Carly radios in to
say that the ”device” has been delivered via helicopter. Which device you ask? An x ray laser of
course! Which they will use to channel the energy from the antimatter into... you got it, X-rays.
Now, all they need is access to the antimatter. After MacLaren argues with Bloom about what the
best contingency plan should be if they don’t find Delaney, Philip announces a potential lead.
He’s got the license plate of a car that arrived at the facility early that morning and goes to find
that vehicle while the engineer heads to the roof to check out her adorable laser and Marcy leaves
her social worker David an emotional voicemail saying goodbye. She advises him not to worry if
she doesn’t return because she might ”be relocated” aka she might ”never be born”.

It was a painful message to deliver and Bloom is in her own painful state. Her host body
was dying from cancer (hence the euthanasia) and she doesn’t have whatever medication she
needs. But, she does have marijuana which is for sure one of the best pain killers around.
She lights up a joint since her only task in the next few hours is turning a little key. Philip’s
much more difficult task of locating Dr. Delaney has been accomplished by tracking down her
tablet. MacLaren drives off to get their scientist back which Carly is not excited about. She’s
been holding off police officers and firefighters who arrived on the scene to give a helping hand.
In order to shoo them away, the travelers set off a second blast which sets off a second toxic
cloud which sets off more non-traveler humans evacuating the area. MacLaren confidently walks
into the warehouse where Gleason is holding Delaney and uses his FBI authority to casually
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intimidate, deceive and persuade the grumpy major into releasing the scientist into his custody.
Too bad that when they go to retrieve her, she’s vanished. Woops! Looks like Gleason made

another mistake. Maclaren scolds his foolishness and sprints to sniff out Delaney again. Talk
about deja vu. Oh no, wait, Delaney is in the back of the traveler’s van. Nevermind! She’s safe
and sound and being injected with that delicious serum by Marcy to protect her nervous system.
Delaney isn’t the only one finally disembarking at the facility. Here come the busload of elderly
peeps and Carly is thrilled to get them locked and loaded. But, before they can fulfill their duties
and assist in saving mankind, they need to empty their bladders. Their bladder control isn’t
what it used to be and neither is Gleason’s memory. He forgot for a hot second there that he met
MacLaren previously, when the agent was disguised as a cleaner the first time around. Between
that revelation and the news reporting a toxic chemical leak, Gleason’s had just about enough.
He orders his squad to suit up and get ready to go. Go where you ask? The facility of course!

Marcy, Delaney, and MacLaren arrive with what he thinks is plenty of time to spare but Carly
says otherwise. He uses his plenty of time to passionately kiss his lover before she gets into
firing position alongside Becky, the best sniper among the grandmas. Delaney is less passionate
about the mission and refuses to provide her retina so the antimatter can be used to fuel some
laser sitting on the roof that she’s never seen before. MacLaren attempts to get her on board by
explaining that there’s an asteroid headed towards earth (Helios 685) which hasn’t been detected
yet and when it strikes the Atlantic Ocean in 18 months the wave will knock out most of the
Eastern Seaboard resulting in all of the bad stuff that Bloom mentioned earlier. But, if the laser
is fired precisely 12 minutes from this chat then the beam will strike Helios and deflect it by 0.7
degrees which is enough of a deflection to miss the earth and bring all of the nations together,
Brady Bunch styles. In order to power the laser though they need an antimatter detonation and
as Delaney cautions it could be miles wide and would kill innocent people.

Bloom is aware of this factor already and she’s cool with it. She’s also cool with everyone in
the facility dying and even dying herself and she’s very cool with Gleason and his men being shot
at by Carly and the elderly travelers but she doesn’t want them to die, since you know, protocol
3. When Gleason recognizes that the snipers aren’t shooting to kill, his cohort moves forward
without fear. An anxious Delaney concedes and provides his retina to scan. As soon as she does,
Bloom informs MacLaren that she doesn’t want Delaney to die either ’cause the future could
use her and she orders him to get the scientist as far away as possible. MacLaren insists that
they stay until the mission is complete. He’s worried about the soldiers getting in and messing
everything up big time but the engineer isn’t concerned. If that happens, it will be in the hands
of the director. So, the travelers do as they’re told and guide Dr. Delaney to safety.

Bloom then sets the process in motion. She lights a joint as she watches her invention/the
laser glow in triumph. She’s pumped to be able to turn the key of her life’s work and go down
as the greatest champion of all time. Unfortunately, she doesn’t get the opportunity to do that
because Gleason and his boys come charging in, guns ablaze and take her out before she’s
able to finish her joint. But, as Bloom predicted, the director takes control of the situation and
suddenly the consciousness of a traveler possesses the body of a solider. When that soldier
saunters towards the key Gleason takes him out too. And when another traveler soldier and
another traveler soldier and another traveler soldier do the same Gleason executes them as well,
one after another, leaving him standing alone in an empty room, which means... you got it.
He grabs hold of his skull and cries out as a traveler makes their debut in the major’s brain.
When he lands, he smirks, acknowledges his whereabouts and proceeds to stop Helios 685 from
destroying earth.

Or does he? MacLaren and his team veer off the road as the antimatter detonates and the
laser maybe does its thing and the asteroid is maybe deflected. Delaney asks how they’ll know
if it worked and the agent replies that he isn’t sure that it did. Why? ’Cause they’re still alive of
course! Looks like it’s not the end for the travelers after all but it might be the end of humanity.
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Protocol 5

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Monday November 28, 2016
Writer: SB Edwards, Ashley Park, Pat Smith, Jason Whiting
Director: Helen Shaver
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: Ian Tracey (Ray), Arnold Pinnock (Walt Forbes), Leah Cairns (Kathryn
MacLaren), William MacDonald (Gary Holden), Teryl Rothery (Patri-
cia Holden), Alyssa Lynch (Rene Bellamy), Douglas Chapman (Luca),
Chris Loubardeas (Dealer), Jacqueline Breakwell (Cashier), Simon
Longmore (Agent Riley), Glynis Davies (Jacqueline), Ken Dresen
(Colin), Alex Barima (Nick), Erika Walter (MacLaren’s Future Wife),
Darren E. Scott (Masked Guy #1), Kirk Caouette (Masked Guy #2),
Leif Havdale (Masked Guy #3)

Summary: When confronted with the possibility that their missions may be fin-
ished, the team struggles to adapt to leading everyday 21st-century
lives.

Last week on Travelers MacLaren and
his team accomplished a huge goal. They
used the antimatter to fuel that big laser
which deflected the asteroid Helios and
in turn saved millions of people’s lives.
A few folks did have to die in order for
those millions to be saved, which Ma-
cLaren isn’t totally at ease with, but as
his crew reminds him, present sacrifices
have to be made to better the future. The
FBI agent’s mood doesn’t seem to im-
prove as the travelers sit in their hideout
drinking cheap alcohol as they celebrate
their success. Maybe their leader is down
in the dumps because he’s realizing that

this might be their last mission and their last hangout as pals, since their protocols prevent them
from seeing each other and having sex with each other when they’re not on the clock. Although,
they’re not allowed to ever be having sex which is why Carly and MacLaren keep that on the
down low, especially around MacLaren’s wife Kat.

When MacLaren informs his followers that deflecting Helios could possibly have been their
final task, their moods begin to mirror his misery and his shock that they’re still alive. They
thought that the asteroid endeavour would potentially change the future so drastically that it
could result in them never being born. But, that didn’t happen... yet. So, looks like now they
gotta find a way to continue breathing without a heroic purpose driving them. After MacLaren
wishes them all a happy remaining existence, they take their final sips and disperse and return
to their host bodies normal lives. We follow along as each traveler individually copes with this
new existential crisis.

MacLaren lies awake all night in bed beside his sleeping wife, staring at the clock, processing
everything that just happened. When the alarm goes off, he hits snooze, not having snoozed for a
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minute himself. When he strolls into work his partner Forbes is acting in a highly unusual man-
ner. He begs MacLaren to help him with something that he won’t provide any information about.
When MacLaren pushes for details Forbes uses his partner’s repeated absences and annoying
slacking off to avoid answering any questions. He wants MacLaren to trust him and he obliges.
But, MacLaren becomes more worried when they arrive in an alleyway and masked men appear
out of nowhere and attack him. He tries to defend himself but fails to escape.

Luckily for him though Forbes wasn’t setting him up to be captured or beaten up or killed.
He was setting him up for a surprise party! That’s right. A large door raises beside MacLaren
revealing all of his family and friends with wine glasses in hand. They gathered to honour his 15
year anniversary with the FBI. It’s another alcohol soaked celebration that MacLaren is not in the
mood for but he obliges again. Once he begins to hallucinate though he wishes that he had left
earlier. Apparently, hallucinations are a side effect of the antitoxin that Marcy gave the travelers
to protect them from the toxic chemical leak. Every traveler begins to see and hear things that
aren’t there, but not every traveler sees and hears things that aren’t there at their own party
surrounded by dozens of people. When Forbes gives MacLaren a jersey as a gift he thinks that
the back of it says ”Helios 685” but it actually says ”MacLaren 15”. Then when his colleagues are
sharing FBI stories he hears them laughing about evacuating the ”south shelter”.

But, the freakiest image he witnesses is during a strange speech that he gives where he talks
about how your coworkers become your family and he’s upset that he won’t be seeing anyone
again. His rambling makes little sense but it must be hard to focus when you’re watching as
humans from the future, who have shaved heads and are wearing rags, are milling about as
he talks. He’s obviously delusional and the image he’s seeing isn’t real but damn, it’s terrifying
nonetheless. After MacLaren drinks a bit too much hard liquor to keep him standing, Kat insists
that they leave and he insists that she drive home. She isn’t in a great mood either. Not since
Forbes asked her how she was feeling and why she went to the doctor that time MacLaren had to
take her there. Since she didn’t go to the doctor she’s feeling fine. Well, she’s feeling fine minus
being distraught over learning that her husband is lying and could be cheating on her.

When they return home she confront him about the lies and about him changing his phone
password and about his weird behaviour as of late. He counters her accusations with a declara-
tion of love and more hallucinations. This time he pictures a woman who is not Kat standing in
Kat’s place. The woman has a similar aesthetic to the head shaved, rag wearing folks he pictured
earlier and because he is declaring his love to her we can assume that this woman is the actual
Carly in the actual Carly body. He passionately kisses her and undresses her and then has sex
with her even and although the lovemaking seems to be quality stuff Kat is less than enthused
after. She’s heartbroken and now sure that MacLaren is having an affair. She quietly tiptoes to
the bathroom to send her mom an emotional text confirming his adultery.

Meanwhile, across town, the actual Carly not in the actual Carly body, is sobbing as she
consoles her also sobbing infant. Suddenly, she’s not a weapon’s expert. She’s just a single
mom, which in many ways is a much more strenuous and lonely position. Like MacLaren, she
struggles with her own brand of hallucinations which come in the form of flashbacks to when she
was abducted two episodes ago. The same questions that the retro TV asked her begin popping up
on her more modern screen. Questions like ”When are you from?” and ”What are the protocols?”
She goes to change the channel but nothing else is on, so she turns the television off altogether.
But, that doesn’t stop it from turning itself back on and showing her live footage of her and her
baby in her living room from a camera planted somewhere in her house. She begins frantically
looking around the room for where this hidden cam could be but she finds nothing.

Then, when she’s visited by a lady from child services, who was sent by her abusive ex Jeff to
determine how qualified of a mother she is, Carly begins frantically looking for ulterior motives
for why this lady is in her home. Carly wants to know who sent the lady and why the lady is
there and when she doesn’t get the answer she wants she bids a loud, aggressive adieu to the
stranger which does not bode well for her retaining custody of her kid. At least she didn’t pull
out the gun she originally was holding when she answered the door. Then she’d have to worry
less about custody and more about being in jail. Even her baby starts to wonder if she’s lost it.

Marcy on the other hand is having fewer hallucinations and more surgical operations, as in
she’s operating on herself. Yes. You read that correctly. After David leaves the apartment to buy
some groceries, Marcy takes this opportunity to slip into a white dress, grab hold of her scalpel
and dig right into her bod while kneeling in her social worker’s pristine bath tub. It’s not clear at
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first why on earth she is subjecting herself to such agony but when David returns home to a sink
full of blood and a Marcy punctured with holes, she clarifies her reasoning behind the impromptu
surgery. Apparently, she wanted to help reduce her seizures and because she’s a genius medical
professional she didn’t require a hospital. She just used a sharpie to mark which points on her
neck and chest that she had to stab then froze those areas to avoid the excruciating pain and
went for it. She doesn’t understand why this is a big deal and David doesn’t understand anything
she does. This is not normal. It’s insane and he’s tired of pretending otherwise.

He continues to yammer on about how crazy this situation/Marcy generally is so the traveler
does what she does best. She shuts him up by making out with him and as soon as her lips
hit his lips he quiets way down. Not only does he quiet down, he agrees to perform additional
surgery for her. He’s gone from zero to a hundred gallons of blood in mere seconds. Although
Marcy is a genius she didn’t seem to manage to eliminate her health issues entirely which she
learns when she’s interrupted mid-sentence by a nose bleed. Fortunately, David is in love with
her and willing to do anything she requests as long as it’s followed and preceded by a smooch.
She lies on her side on the ground and David has his debut as a surgeon and he’s not bad! No
wonder him and Marcy get along so well. They’re both good at sticking sharp objects into Marcy.

Trevor is discovering that he has very little in common with his lover. They aren’t good at the
same things. He’s a talented technician and she’s a talented thief. Rene drags her boyfriend to
a clothing store so he can watch her try on clothes and help her steal the clothes she tries on.
Stoic, honest, kind Trevor isn’t into breaking the law thought As the two lovers quarrel about
her unpurchased thread, their pal, who’s standing at the front, rats them out to the employee
who catches them red handed. When the employee goes to reprimand Trevor and Rene his friend
steals something else from the cash and makes a run for it with Rene close behind him. It’s only
stoic, honest, kind Trevor who stays behind to apologize and buy the stolen items and imagine
the employee telling him that the ”director” will make him pay for this... this being the clothes?

When he meets up with Rene and his friend nearby he learns that the stealing does not stop
at clothing. His pal also swiped Trevor’s mom’s medication to get them high for free. Trevor also
isn’t into this scheme but Rene affirms that it was his idea. After a quick fist fight with his friend,
which begins with Trevor winning until he semi-blacks out and comes to as his face is being
pummeled by his pal. Once contact has been made, said pal boots out of there, leaving Rene to
tend to a wounded Trevor. This is when they share their most touching, genuine moment yet.
Rene reveals that she wasn’t into stealing either and just did it because she thought he liked
it. Hearing the truth, Trevor softens to his host’s girlfriend and takes her to a beautiful park so
they can meditate and have deep conversations about the meaning of life. Trevor tells her that he
feels lost because he no longer has a purpose. She is very empathetic and says that she knows
how hard it must be to not play football anymore. Um, not what he was talking about Rene! She
follows that up with expressing heartfelt affection for him regardless of his silly football career.

She also makes an excellent dick joke. Well played Rene. You’ve got more going on upstairs
than we thought! Trevor ends this lovely interaction with his beau and returns home to a much
less lovely interaction with his drunk father and disappointed mother who scold Trevor for taking
his mom’s medication. He’s honest and stoic and kind as per usual and blames his friend for
doing it. Although it’s the truth, his inebriated dad doesn’t believe him and punishes Trevor for
his dishonesty by slapping him across the face. Geez. Trevor’s face is not having a good day.

Things start to improve though when he visits Philip, which again, because of the protocols
he’s technically not allowed to do. But, he argues that Trevor and Philip could for sure be besties.
Philip already has a bestie though. It’s a turtle that he bought earlier with his gambling addict
former lawyer. When Philip took to the streets to locate some heroin and soothe his withdrawal
woes he bumped into his old legal representation who always seems to be cruising around the
city in his car for absolutely no reason. This time though he’s not as interested in getting bets
from the traveler historian. He’s more interested in sending Philip on the path to recovery. He can
recognize withdrawal when he sees it. The lawyer first fills Philip’s stomach with nourishment in
the form of fast food, although hallucinating Philip pictures it to be oatmeal like mush which we
can also assume is the most popular meal in the post-apocalyptic future.

He then escorts Philip to a pet store so he can buy a living being to keep him company. A dog
is too much work but a turtle is just enough. Then they head to an addictions group therapy
meeting. Every participant goes around, introduces themselves and says their specific addiction
out loud. What Philip hears though is them stating their traveler numbers and their willingness
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to dedicate their lives to the director. When it’s his turn he discusses how he was selected and
trained to remember everything as a traveler and post-saving the world what does he do now?
But, he didn’t actually say any of that out loud. What he does say is that his name is Philip and
that he’s a heroin addict. And Philip, the heroin addict, won’t have to worry much about what
he’s going to do now. ’Cause guess what? When Trevor, the teenage football star, is hanging out
with them, looking at his turtle, they unexpectedly get a mission and become travelers again.
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Donner

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Monday December 5, 2016
Writer: Ashley Park, Pat Smith
Director: Will Waring
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: Arnold Pinnock (Walt Forbes), Jennifer Spence (Grace Day), J. Alex
Brinson (Jeff Conniker), Laura Mennell (ADA Peckham), Jason Gray-
Stanford (Aaron Donner), Kirby Morrow (Hickman), Howard Siegel
(Bookie), Michael Patrick Denis (Jeff’s Lawyer), Françoise Yip (Judge),
Aaron Craven (Ken), Alyson Bath (Mindy), Pat Smith (Mr. Morrissy),
Cindy Piper (Store Owner), Lanie McAuley (Candy), Keisha Haines (Web
Cam Girl #2), Jennifer Cheon (Web Cam Girl #3), Douglas Chapman
(Luca), Glynis Davies (Jacqueline)

Summary: MacLaren searches for a lone bomber who killed recent arrivals.

Last week we weren’t so sure if our fave
cast of heroes were going to be continu-
ing on their path of herodom since they
had completed their major goal of deflect-
ing the Helios asteroid. MacLaren was all
”Yo guys this might be it for the sav-
ing lives thing”. But then at the very last
minute of the episode Phillip and Trevor
and Philip’s turtle were handed a new
mission for their team. Hooray! And what
did that exciting fresh adventure involve?

Chatting with webcam girls, obviously. If you haven’t seen the episode you’re likely as confused
as I was before I figured out that the travelers were conversing with these sex workers through a
camera in their computer purely for work purposes. No, really. Trevor doesn’t even want to talk
about sex with this lady. He is more interested in hearing her happiest moments. Awww! Trevor!
Philip on the other hand spends his time explaining how intimacy cannot be achieved via the
internet and MacLaren questions how the blonde Candy could tell he was hot without seeing his
face.

The FBI agent has zero interest in flattery. He is too focused on the mission. The three webcam
girls are hosts for upcoming travelers that are about to arrive. One of the regular customers of
another girl is preparing a bomb just outside the building because he is super religious and
believes that they should perish in the fires of hell. Luckily for the girls this god fearing lunatic is
a host for an upcoming traveler as well. So, instead of setting off the bomb (which would kill the
women and him) his brain will be swapped out for a futuristic consciousness. Right on cue the
women grab their skulls and shriek in pain and the bomber does the same. When the transfer
is complete MacLaren addresses his traveler. But, within seconds of her arrival in the 21st the
connection is lost. Not luckily for the girls, the bomb wasn’t defused and they don’t survive.

MacLaren is immediately suspicious as is Trevor’s teacher Ms. Day who is shocked that the
teenager got 90% on a physics test. She brings him into her office to denounce him for cheating
and although he denies it (which is the truth) eventually he has to pretend that he did in order
to not blow his cover. She offers to tutor him so he can take the test again and he accepts her
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kind gesture. Carly is preparing for a big event as well. She’s all dressed up in a blazer to attend
a hearing regarding the custody of her child. Her abusive ex Jeff wants custody and she refuses
to give it to him, which Marcy doesn’t understand. She argues that not having that baby around
would make missions way easier but Carly refuses to leave her child with that abusive man.

When MacLaren arrives at the crime scene where the deceased webcam girls worked, his
partner Forbes informs him that the bomber is nowhere to be found... which means that the
traveler who didn’t fulfill his duty took off after doing so, even though he was quite injured after
the explosion. MacLaren heads off to track the suspect as Forbes consoles another webcam girl
who shows up crying uncontrollably and blaming herself for this tragedy. Apparently, a client
of hers who goes by the name of Aaron Donner was highly judgemental of her line of work and
started sending religious hate mail to them. She is confident that he was the one who did this.

MacLaren is confident as well because he knows that Donner was the chosen host body for his
new colleague. He stumbles upon the wounded traveler in a restaurant nearby after the owner
waves down MacLaren and tells him that a strange, bleeding man is in her kitchen (tending to
his many injuries with plastic wrap and something white and absorbent). MacLaren explains
who he is to the bleeding man on the run but that doesn’t stop the bleeding man on the run from
attacking the FBI agent. He knocks him in the neck with an object which breaks the traveler’s
communication device and knocks him out cold. David is almost metaphorically knocked out
cold when his boss, Ken, tells him that he’s fired for allowing Marcy to live in his house and
breaking a million social worker rules. David attempts to salvage his job by declaring that Marcy
is not who Ken thinks she is. She works with the FBI and is no longer disabled. David wants to
prove this to his superior by having him over for dinner which Marcy agrees to attend.

When Carly goes to the custody hearing with her baby in her arms Jeff does not play nice. He
immediately accuses her of assaulting him, of having a temper issue and of being a sex worker
since she pays all of her bills in cash and he’s seen an ”old white guy” lurking around her house.
Jeff and his lawyer are making a strong case for why Carly shouldn’t have custody but luckily for
Carly she has Philip on her side who slipped into a suit in order to take on the role of ”lawyer”.
But his fancy tie and briefcase don’t stop him from getting a parking ticket or from Carly losing
it on Jeff in front of the judge and affirming his accusation of her having a yelling, temper issue.
Although we know that Jeff is the bad guy, not Carly, it’s not going to be easy to prove that.

Meanwhile, when MacLaren awakes in the restaurant kitchen from being knocked out cold
he gets Donner’s address and kicks open the front door with gun in hand. But when he turns
a corner he doesn’t find just Donner there. He also sees Forbes and another agent who have
Donner in cuffs and beat MacLaren to the punch. Donner was apparently about to vacate the
country as evidenced by his luggage full of clothes, cash and his passport. Marcy could use a
bit of cash too and puts in a request to Philip to place some bets so she can get a few thousand
dollar bills. Trevor is scoring high as well in his tutoring session with Ms. Day who is shocked
once again to hear Trevor answer every physics question she asks him correctly. He tells her
that it’s because he doesn’t play football anymore and has time to study but she’s not so sure.
Regardless of the reason, she gives him a book to soothe his frustrations with everyone ordering
him around. The book is called ”The Perfect Day” and Trevor reads it in half a day.

Back at the FBI office MacLaren is interrogating Donner. He asks the new traveler if he even
tried to defuse the bomb and what exactly went down outside that building. But, the bleeding
man seems to not know what a traveler is and sticks to his religious lunatic act. The traveler
talk is cut short when Forbes joins the interrogation. Donner continues to refuse to chat and
demands legal representation before moving forward. This puts Maclaren in even more agony
than he’s already in. He pops a few painkillers to dull his aching neck and drops by Marcy’s
place to request that she replace his communication device. She’s a tad preoccupied though.
David’s boss Ken is there for dinner and to meet undercover agent Marcy who does not require
social assistance. When Ken sees MacLaren, who David said works with Marcy, he insists that
the FBI agent show him some ID. MacLaren obliges and confirms that Marcy is a colleague of
his. When Ken pushes for more info the agent says ”It’s none of your goddamn business”.

Speaking of none of your goddamn business... the traveler organization is really none of Don-
ner’s lawyer’s business but that doesn’t stop the bleeding man from revealing everything that
MacLaren said to him. He announces that they’re breaking the law and that MacLaren is one of
them and that the DA’s office needs to know about this. As Donner’s lawyer makes that happen
Philip receives his winnings from his guaranteed bets. Unfortunately though his bets weren’t as
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guaranteed as he thought. He only won three out of five races and doesn’t know why. Is the
past changing? Looks like it might be. He asks the team to assemble at the hideout asap. Before
Trevor does so he drops by Ms. Day’s office to return her book and to give her some one of his
books. Ms. Day is grateful for the gift but later she’s less happy when Trevor misses the physics
test that he was supposed to retake. Trevor may fail school respite being a genius!

And David may be fired despite being a great social worker and despite Marcy working for
the FBI and not being disabled. Ken wants David’s letter of resignation and his keys immediately
since he basically helped Marcy commit social insurance fraud. Marcy wasted thousands of
dollars that could have been given to people who actually need it. David begs for forgiveness but
Ken does not yield. That is until Marcy drops by with the cash Philip won and pays back Ken for
all of the money she wasted with interest. In return, she wants David to remain employed. Marcy
is kind of like David’s guardian angel and the lady from child services is kind of like Carly’s angel.
She tells the traveler that she’s going to do everything she can to help Carly and her baby. She
has seen women in Carly’s situation suffer before and she doesn’t want it to happen again. Her
first suggestion to the traveler is to get a job to verify how responsible she is.

The episode ends on a dramatic scene with Donner telling all to the DA’s office in a large
boardroom while his lawyer and MacLaren and several police officers sit nearby. He goes on and
on about a secret organization that operates worldwide. It’s similar to a terrorist organization
and has implicated a federal agent. He says that he was approached by MacLaren, who revealed
himself as a double agent and promised that if he joined them he would get lesser charges.
Luckily for MacLaren the DA’s office is not buying it and asks the agent to escort the prisoner
back into custody but then Donner spills further juicy information. He is a traveller and has been
this whole time and he will provide everything they want to know about the heroic time bandits.
Their protocols. Their web servers. Their communication devices. Even their missions.

When Donner finishes his monologue, a woman from the DA’s office asks MacLaren if he is
actually one of these so-called travelers and surprisingly the FBI agent confesses that yes, he is
one. At first Donner looks real smug but then MacLaren finishes his sentence by saying ”and
I’m not alone”. He then stands and so do the woman from the DA’s office, Donner’s lawyer, and
the police officers who are travelers themselves. This begins a second hearing in the episode.
The traveler is now on trial for treason and needs to plead his case as well. He whimpers that
he tried defusing the bomb a thousand times but it didn’t work and the director didn’t give him
enough time. But, this story contradicts what he said earlier on in the meeting about taking the
opportunity to finally live aboveground and that he was never going back to existing in squalor.

Not luckily for him, he is found guilty after a traveler vote is conducted through another web-
cam that’s in front of Donner. We watch as Marcy, Carly, Trevor and Philip cast their votes vote
(which is why they had to assemble) and the results are not in Donner’s favour. The punishment
for treason is death by immediate overwrite. The other travelers observe Donner, who is tied to a
chair, shrieking in pain while a new traveler takes over his brain. They welcome him to the 21st
and he thanks them with a grin. Forbes doesn’t have a grin on his face when he discovers that
Donner didn’t get the death penalty. Instead he got life with the possibility of parole. MacLaren
tries to console him but his partner is furious. He thinks that Donner got off because he killed
the ”right people” and that nobody cares about the sad deaths of a few sex workers.

But, he actually got off because he’s a traveler who is protected by his future organization
in hopes that he will be free one day and saving the world very soon. When MacLaren escorts
Donner to his jail cell he apologizes for the situation but the new traveler is fine with it. He thinks
that prison is still better than where he came from from. MacLaren is disappointed to hear that
the future isn’t doing well and not much has improved. In fact, things have kind of gotten worse.
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Bishop

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Monday December 12, 2016
Writer: Amanda Smith
Director: Will Waring
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: Gerard Plunkett (Ted Bishop), Leah Cairns (Kathryn MacLaren), J.
Alex Brinson (Jeff Conniker), William MacDonald (Gary Holden), Lisa
Marie DiGiacinto (Flight Attendant #1), Carmel Amit (Flight Attendant
#2), Darcy Laurie (Hank), Kathleen Duborg (Mrs. Hayes), Mark Bran-
don (Hayes), Carter Ryan Evancic (9 Year Old Boy)

Summary: MacLaren is closely watched after the Director issues orders for an
assassination, while the team gathers upon word that their leader is
in peril.

It seems that every week the Travelers are
attempting to figure out another mission
related mystery. There’s always some-
thing: it’s either a misfire or a traveler
gone rogue or technical difficulties or the
director giving them explicit instructions
but refusing to explain what they’re do-
ing, where they’re doing it and how this
will impact the world positively. A lot
of the time they have to do as they’re
told and not ask any questions. In this
episode, MacLaren has to fulfill his duties
and risk his life without knowing why. It’s
not until moments before the mission is
complete that he discovers the purpose

behind every extremely dangerous thing he just did.
Said mission begins with a happy married couple taking a morning jog in an empty park.

When the husband stops to answer a phone call we learn that he is somehow involved in the
development of an oil pipeline that would surely assist in destroying the future environment. He
is confident that the project will be approved and the drilling will go forward as planned. When
he hangs up the phone he quips to his wife that jogging is going to kill him. But she quickly
corrects her hubbie. Jogging is not going to kill him. She’s going to kill him. Yup. His significant
other is a traveler who has the goal of pushing her husband off a ledge so that he can fall to his
death. She achieves her goal and then throws in some screaming and crying for realistic effect.
Meanwhile, Marcy is metaphorically pushing David off a ledge as she continues to cause trouble
in his life. Although she did manage to sort of get his job back for him there are other problems.
For example, David reveals that he has feelings for her and although he is attempting to convince
himself that their relationship is platonic he can’t do it anymore. He asks that she find a new
place to live and she promises to be gone by that evening. Across town, Carly’s ex-partner and
current cop Jeff wishes that he could literally push MacLaren off a ledge. He does not like how
much time the agent has been spending with Carly so he goes to the FBI offices to do a bit of
threatening. Jeff wants MacLaren to stay away from Carly and although MacLaren denies that
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he’s involved with her at all he does mention that he spoke to her a while back strictly for work
purposes and that he saw the bruises on her arms. The traveler dishes out his own brand of
threats and makes it clear that he knows Jeff is violent but he better not be with MacLaren.

As Jeff continues to live in the past in hopes of getting his family back, Carly is attempting to
move on. She is interviewing for a job (like child services advised her to do) at a landscaping com-
pany and she’s all smiles when she gets the gig. Trevor isn’t all smiles when his temperamental
father tells him that because he missed another test he has decided to send him to a military
boarding school which would mess with Trevor’s traveler responsibilities. Speaking of traveler
responsibilities, when MacLaren heads to this car as he’s leaving the office he sees a package
sitting on the driver’s seat. Inside the brown envelope is a shiny black box resembling some kind
of hard drive. He tries to determine what it is but there’s no visible way to open it.

There is however a note included telling him to keep the package on his body at all times. He
takes the object to the hideout where Philip is chilling as per usual in hopes that his computer-
savvy traveler will be able to determine what this black box is and why he has it and how it
functions. Unfortunately, Philip doesn’t have any answers. Also he is going through withdrawal
again so his brain also isn’t up to snuff. MacLaren approves Philip taking a hit if he needs it
but Philip doesn’t want to. He’s trying to get clean and has been going to support groups with
his friend/former lawyer Ray. He is able to determine that the box is a combination of digital
and mechanical. But there is no interface or remote signal and the case is lined which makes
it basically impossible for him to confirm what hardware is inside. So, like a good little traveler
MacLaren just has to blindly/bravely follow the plans of his almighty god, the director.

And he has to do this while his wife Kat suspects him of cheating on her (which isn’t not true).
Her suspicions grow even further when Jeff, Carly’s ex, pays her a visit at her home to chat about
a ”personal” matter. David wants to chat with Marcy as well even though she’s already living and
sleeping somewhere else. She’s decided to make the traveler hideout her new home and David
already misses her badly. He calls just to say that if she needs help packing up her stuff later
that he can be there if she’s okay with that and of course she is. Sounds like social worker David
is maybe second guessing his decision to kick the love of his life out of his house.

MacLaren doesn’t have an opportunity to second guess letting a traveler he’s never met into
his car because as soon as he arrives at a red light, his doors unlock on their own and the wife,
who killed her husband after a morning jog, hops into the backseat. She is traveler 3112 and she
is there to brief him on his mission. She hands him a photo of his target, Congressman Bishop,
who will be seated next to him in first class on a flight that MacLaren is apparently taking today.
He’s shocked to hear this for a few reasons. One being that it’s a tad last minute. The second
being that he’s never been in an aircraft before. And the third being that he doesn’t have any
luggage with him. But traveler 3112 says that as long as he has the black box that’s all he needs.
His credentials will get it through airport security and it will open at the appropriate time.

Carly is shocked too when she shows up to her new place of work and her boss informs her
that he will no longer be hiring her. When she demands to know why he explains that they did
a background check and he knows that she was charged with assaulting a police officer. The
same police officer who chatted with MacLaren’s wife Kat which resulted in Kat calling MacLaren
in a rage. She’s even more angry when MacLaren tells her that he can’t talk later because he’s
gotta get on a flight to Washington at 1:30 pm. Trevor’s dad’s anger has quelled a bit since the
conversation about military school. He has a more rational talk with Trevor while the teenager
is gardening in the front yard. He apologizes for how toxic their relationship becomes, which
includes him striking Trevor and he wants to work on them getting close again.

Jeff is working on him and Carly getting close again too. When she heads to the police station
to confront him about these alleged charges, she asks him what he wants from her and what
he wants is... her. Awwwww. That would sound so romantic if it wasn’t coming from an abusive
ex-boyfriend. Carly is not having a good day and neither is Philip whose withdrawal side effects
have gotten worse. When MacLaren calls him he’s lying in a ball of his own sweat on his bed. The
lead traveler needs Philip to receive mission instructions for him since he will be on the plane
and until he hits 20,000 feet his futuristic communication device won’t even work which makes
MaLaren highly nervous. Philip tries to reassure him that flying is the safest way to travel but
as soon as the traveler boards the aircraft his nervousness triples. He sits in his first class seat
with the package in his hands and says hello to Congressman Bishop when he sits beside him.
The Congressman takes a call and reveals that he was just as a funeral for the husband who
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was killed by his wife/traveler 3112. Turns out that the husband was also employed by the US
government. Bishop ends the call with confirming that the pipeline will still be going forward.

Carly attempts to call MacLaren but because his phone is on flight mode she gets his voice-
mail. She leaves him a message asking for his help since Jeff is trying to sabotage her identity.
The traveler is kind of distracted right now though. He has to make small talk with Bishop before
completing a mission he still doesn’t understand. During the small talk MacLaren tells Bishop
that he works for the FBI and Bishop asks MacLaren if he is handling the death of his recently
deceased pal. Maclaren affirms that his division has indeed been assigned to the case as the
plane prepares for lift off. When Carly has a few more job interviews she needs a babysitter and
since Jeff is so intent on being a part of her family again she asks him for help. She hands off
her infant in hopes that maybe this peace offering will get Jeff off her back so she can get a job.

Marcy is on the hunt as well but not for a job. For an apartment. She’s gotta put her stuff
somewhere, especially since David wants to give her more kitchen appliances than she needs.
When she goes to pack up her stuff he confesses that this is harder than he thought it would be.
He feels like he’s dying and then Marcy confesses that she is actually dying. Her seizures are just
symptoms of a bigger problem and the surgeries she’s been performing on herself have only been
buying him. She also confesses that she has feelings for David too and they share in a passionate
kiss. Awww. Now that is romantic. Carly’s missing her romantic beau because she’s in desperate
need of his assistance right now. She’s gotta get those charges removed and his FBI connections
could make that happen permanently. Philip tells her that MacLaren will touch base when his
flight lands. So, Carly looks into what time he will be arriving and in the process informs Philip
that MacLaren’s flight number is 329 which is headed to Washington.

This launches Philip into panic mode because according to history that plane is going to
crash and burn. Philip summons Marcy and Trevor to join them in Mission: Save MacLaren from
Crashing and Burning. The FBI agent, unaware that his death is near, calmly stands to let Bishop
go to the bathroom and in the process notices a familiar face in another passenger seat. His wife
Kat sneakily bought a ticket for this flight as well in hopes of spying on him and possibly catching
him in the act of adultery. She tells him about Jeff’s visit and then apologizes for being so silly
and paranoid. They can’t finish their convo though because the flight attendant demands that
MacLaren return to this seat. He can’t be walking around ’cause there’s turbulence. Bishop isn’t
too worried about the bumpy ride but MacLaren definitely is, especially when his communication
device turns on and Trevor notifies him that all 141 passengers on flight 329 die.

And since his wife Kat is now on the flight as well that includes her. When smoke begins to fill
the plane because of a fire, MacLaren assumes that it is his mission to prevent the crashing and
burning. But when the black box opens up he realizes that his mission is only to save himself
and one other passenger and that passenger is not his wife Kat. It’s Congressman Bishop and
he will be doing the saving using the contents of the black box which is a two person stasis field.
What is a two person stasis field? Well, it’s a sphere of energy that would protect two persons
from surrounding dangers, like say a plane crashing and burning. MacLaren wants to know
if it’s possible to fit three people inside the stasis so he can include his wife Kat. Awww. Talk
about romance! Unfortunately though Trevor declares that it is impossible. Philip now knows
why MacLaren was kept in the dark on the mission. The director knew he’d try to save everyone.

But, MacLaren doesn’t want to save everyone. He just wants to save his wife. And his crew
of travelers are in a car driving to the crash site so they can save him and Bishop because once
they leave the stasis they will need resuscitation. Doctor Marcy is prepared to do that but she
doesn’t know if they should be getting involved. They weren’t given this mission. It was strictly
for MacLaren and they keep improvising which the future does not like. So, the future will 100%
not like MacLaren improvising a whole bunch and giving his spot in the two person energy stasis
field to his wife Kat. Yup. He sits Kat down beside Bishop in the front of the plane and explains
to both of them how the device in the black box works exactly. It’s simple. All Kat has to do is
press the button when it lights up red and hold on tight as the energy sphere surrounds them.

But, what is MacLaren going to do? Is he going to jump out of the plane in a parachute? Is
he going to create another stasis field somehow? Or is he going to straight up sacrifice his life to
save his lady? None of the above. He is going to squat in the tail of the plane which according
to Philip is the only part of the aircraft that doesn’t crash and burn. That doesn’t mean he will
survive the fatal landing but it does give him more of a chance of survival then if he went back to
his seat which the flight attendant repeatedly asks him to do. MacLaren says his farewells to his
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wife, tells her calmly that she’s going to be okay and kisses her sweetly, maybe for the last time.
The travelers stand at the crash site and watch as the plane does exactly what it was supposed

to do: crashes and burns. They also watch as the stasis energy field sphere rolls away from the
debris and disappears revealing the passengers inside the sphere to be Bishop and Kat. Carly
now goes into panic mode when she realizes that the love of her life was in the tail of the plane
when it exploded. Marcy resuscitates Bishop and Kat as Carly goes running to where MacLaren
might be. Trevor holds her back as an unconscious, maybe dead MacLaren is carried away by
paramedics. Then moments after Marcy successfully gets Kat and Bishop’s hearts beating again
Bishop grabs his head and shrieks out in pain. We know what this means, don’t we folks? His
brain is being replaced with the consciousness of a traveler. Ah! It’s all coming together! He had
to be saved so that a traveler could swoop in and make that oil pipeline go bye bye forever.
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Kathryn

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Monday December 19, 2016
Writer: Jason Whiting, SB Edwards
Director: Andy Mikita
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: Arnold Pinnock (Walt Forbes), Leah Cairns (Kathryn MacLaren),
Matthew Kevin Anderson (D 13 / Derek), Jenny Mitchell (Stacey
Nichols), Paul Lazenby (Big Guard), Melanie Papalia (Beth)

Summary: As death approaches, MacLaren drifts in and out of his host’s memo-
ries.

Did FBI agent MacLaren survive the
plane crash that he should have escaped
with Congressman Bishop? Yes! He gave
up his seat in the energy stasis field to
save his wife Kathryn. She wasn’t sup-
posed to be on the flight according to fac-
tual history yet she ended up there as a
result of her growing paranoia that her
husband is cheating on her. And where
did this paranoia stem from? MacLaren’s
suspicious traveler related late nights
and disappearances obviously! Therefore,
the lead time jumper felt responsible for

his host’s partner’s potential demise and he sacrificed himself in order to prevent that demise
from happening. Now the question is... did he succeed?

He did! Kathryn is all safe and sound (along with Bishop) and MacLaren is all on his deathbed
and being operated on. That’s right. We discover that the suit wearing traveler didn’t 100% perish
when his aircraft plummeted into the ground. But he isn’t in good shape and the only thing that
can save him are the efforts of futuristic doctors with futuristic technology and futuristic skills.
It’s not clear at the beginning of the episode though if Eric McCormack is still the main character
of this sci-fi series. The first five-ish minutes feature Marcy, Carly, Trevor and Philip in a panic
as they drive back into town from the crash site with MacLaren’s wife Kathryn (or Kat for short)
on board. She is in even more of a panic than they are because she has no clue what is going
on or who they are or where her hubby went. As the team discusses possibilities of MacLaren’s
whereabouts, Marcy injects a terrified Kat with some of her ”go to sleep” serum and Kat’s line of
questioning quickly halts.

Once she’s unconscious, Carly grumbles that she doesn’t know how MacLaren stands her
(somebody sounds jealous). She also makes an important observation: the FBI agent must be
alive because paramedics showed up and immediately abducted him so clearly they were travel-
ers sent by the director and the director wouldn’t be treating anyone who was beyond treating.
Although Marcy is skeptical that their boss man could have survived the injuries he likely in-
curred Philip affirms that those dudes with the stretcher had to be their colleagues. When he
tries and fails to reach out to MacLaren via their communication devices Marcy dials his number
instead. And to her surprise a calm voice answers the call and instantly provides the location of
their missing captain. He’s at the hideout with them and he’s in critical condition.
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But, who’s them? Them are the futuristic doctors mentioned above! One of ’em is named
Derek (making the letter D in his traveler label appropriate for both his profession and his legal
name). Before we get to meet them though, Derek advises the crew to take care of Kat which
translates to ”wipe her memory and make it look like she just got super wasted and forgot what
happened in the last 24 hours” so they do exactly that. The four warriors carry the limp wife lady
into her home, use another handy tool to erase some memories, tuck her into bed and proceed
to empty bottles of wine into the sink in hopes that she’ll think she and Grant (MacLaren) had a
wild night.

And it works! Although, she doesn’t awake from her slumber without another line of ques-
tioning. This time her inquiries are targeted towards MacLaren in text message form. She wants
to know what the heck happened the previous night because she can’t remember a single detail.
MacLaren rapidly replies saying that they drank a ton of vino hence why she’s supremely hun-
gover. Forbes is also curious as to why his partner is late once again so he shoots the agent a text
himself and also gets a rapid reply. MacLaren lies to Forbes and says that he’s with Kathryn at
the bank. Or should I say Philip lies to Forbes that MacLaren is with Kathryn at the bank since
he’s the one controlling the agent’s cell until the agent is no longer on his deathbed.

It’s actually more like a death-operating-table than a bed per say but you get the idea. The
travelers didn’t know what they would be encountering when they entered their hideout ready
for a brawl. But as soon as they saw the pop up hospital room in their headquarters they knew
that their commander was in good hands or as Marcy qualifies the best possible hands on earth.
Derek and his coworker trust that they can mend MacLaren’s broken parts as long as they
stabilize him and stop all brain hemorrhaging and repair his cerebral cortex and replace a few
major organs in a limited amount of time. No big deal! They totally got this. Nothing is impossible
when you’re a genius from the future and you have amazing nanotechnology backing you up!

Well, apparently that’s not exactly true. Even geniuses from the future with cutting edge
gadgets and doohickeys can’t move mountains or build human hearts out of nothing. They need
a body to grow it from within and Trevor volunteers to be that body. So, Doctor Derek strolls
over to the shirtless teenager to install the new tiny heart into his chest so that it can finish
developing. But luckily for Trevor they don’t need to cut him open in order to do so. All they gotta
do is drop a parasite-esque creature onto his belly with the heart attached and it will find its way
inside. Meanwhile, Marcy slips into her scrubs and lends a helping scalpel in the operating room
and Philip assists the team in his own way. Not only is he on phone duty but he responsibly
remembers that MacLaren’s car is at the airport and since he wasn’t supposed to have ever been
on the flight it needs to be moved. He goes off to play valet and Carly supervises the docs.

When Philip arrives at the airport parking lot and attempts to unlock the door with MacLaren’s
key he accidentally sets off the car alarm which gets the attention of security. When he tries to
drive the vehicle through the barrier gates said security demands to see his license and regis-
tration. He shows MacLaren’s paperwork but that isn’t enough to quell suspicions. Philip knows
he’s in trouble when the man of the law goes to put handcuffs on him so he does some kicking
and punching and suddenly those cuffs are on the man of the law not him. Then he boots it
out of there, so naturally the car is reported stolen. As soon as Forbes is told about the theft he
goes into investigation mode hoping to do his pal a solid. He also wants to soothe Kat’s emotions
’causes she begins to worry when Forbes calls her to ask if MacLaren is with her.

She of course thought that he was chilling with Forbes who tries real hard to brush it off as
an innocent miscommunication. Kat doesn’t buy it though and heads straight to the FBI offices
to get answers. Unfortunately Forbes doesn’t have any but that won’t last for long. His first piece
of detective work is highly effective. He logs into the camera in MacLaren’s car in order to identify
which culprit is behind the wheel. When he sees Philip’s mug and when MacLaren’s assistant
instantly recognizes him as the almost convicted of manslaughter heroin addict, the FBI agent
uses the automobile’s GPS to zero in on Philip and put that crook behind bars for good. But
before he does that, he’s given another confusing piece of information. A long list of MacLaren’s
former GPS coordinates reveals that he has made numerous visits to an address of interest.

It’s the traveler hideout which was purchased under Philip’s former lawyer’s name. Like the
good cop he is Forbes connects the dots immediately and hops into his car to bust the heroin
addict and also MacLaren who is maybe working with him? Forbes is wondering if this could be
the reason that his partner has been acting so strangely lately. After Kat expresses her own ob-
servations about her husband’s bizarre behaviour her beau’s closest friend and colleague admits
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that he’s noticed differences and assures Kat that she is not crazy and not imagining it.
Philip also isn’t imagining that he’s being followed by the police. That car was reported stolen

and the feds are 100% on his tail. When he makes the move to abandon the wheels and flee the
scene he gets cornered in an alley with a cop car nearby. So it’s up to Carly to provide him with
an escape route. She shows up in the traveler van and pretends that she spilled coffee on her
lap in order to park and block said cop car from spotting Philip. As she backs out of the way for
them to pass by we see Philip pulling a Mission Impossible inspired maneuver and hanging onto
the back of the truck. He avoids arrest and arrives at the hideout just in time for MacLaren’s
recovery and moments before Forbes charges in wanting answers. When Philip detects that the
FBI agent is en route to their homebase he puts a rush on MacLaren’s life threatening surgery.

Trevor would like to put a rush on it as well so that they can remove the extra heart forming
within his chest cavity which according to him is excruciatingly painful. Although Carly and
Marcy both refuse to move MacLaren to another location they do manage to get him sealed
up, dressed and ready to deceive Forbes, who isn’t happy when he stumbles upon MacLaren
interrogating Philip in the hideout. Carly steps out from underneath a car when Forbes enters
and she tries to convince him that the joint is a simple garage but he can see right through her
act. He can’t see through the act of MacLaren though who claims that he has been working with
Philip on a hacker case and recently the youngin’ went rogue and stole his car. This all plays out
while Derek is in another room sealing up Trevor who continues to be in excruciating pain.

Forbes leaves in a major huff but at least the traveler’s real pursuits were not discovered.
Doctor Derek says his goodbyes to the traveler crew and apologizes to Marcy for not being able
to assist with her situation aka save her life. They did manage to save MacLaren’s life though
and he is forever grateful for them doing so. Before Derek exits, he prescribes MacLaren a dose
of serious resting, major sitting down, and zero moving. Also, he is not permitted to have sex for
a few days which elicits a disgruntled expression in Carly who is ready to cuddle her soulmate.

Although, MacLaren would possibly not be making love to her anyhow. These days he’s got his
eyes set on another lady. Nope. Not a second mistress. He’s got his eyes set on his wife who he is
falling for as deeply as his host body did previously. A big reason he has developed a crush on his
significant other is because while he is comatosed and being operated on by nanotechnology he
has some intensely romantic dreams. Or more accurately he re-experiences a slew of experiences
from his host’s memory bank. And these aren’t just any ordinary flashbacks. Each scene stars
Kathryn often looking very gorgeous. Even in the sad moments she still looks super pretty. But
how does MacLaren have access to these mems at all?

Well, as dream Kathryn explains while in a wedding dress standing in a bright, empty ware-
house, these are orphaned neurons of the host’s mind that were cut off from MacLaren. They’re
just fragments and he usually wouldn’t be able to get admission to the love story of Kathryn and
MacLaren but he’s almost dead which changes the game. MacLaren has to transition between the
experiences by climbing a ladder/staircase or answering a ringing phone. The memories include:
him and Kathryn moving into their house, him and Kathryn taking a road trip and MacLaren
appreciating Kathryn’s beauty while she changes a tire in a nightgown, him teaching Kathyrn
how to shoot a gun, him having a convo with Kathryn about trying to have a baby again, him
getting into a fight with Kathryn about him working too much, and him packing up nursery stuff
after Kathryn loses the baby and almost loses her life in the tragic process.

After watching this highlight reel of their relationship, MacLaren tells dream Kathryn that he
clearly loved her so much. She clarifies that the real MacLaren loved her so much but traveler
MacLaren feels it now too. He kinda adores Kathryn hence why he sacrificed himself for her. So
his heart breaks when he attempts to apologize to her at the end of the episode for disappearing
earlier and not replying to her messages and she slams the bathroom door in his smitten face.

41



Travelers Episode Guide

42



Travelers Episode Guide

Marcy

Season 1
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 11

Originally aired: Monday December 26, 2016
Writer: Jason Whiting
Director: Andy Mikita
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: Jennifer Spence (Grace Day), Leah Cairns (Kathryn MacLaren), J. Alex
Brinson (Jeff Conniker), Kristine Cofsky (Officer Boyd), Tom McBeath
(Ellis), Kwesi Ameyaw (Doctor), Georgia Hacche (Nurse), Liam Hughes
(Sickly Child), Preston Vanderslice (Man Texting), Lee Shan Gibson
(Construction Worker), Glynis Davies (Jacqueline)

Summary: As the team deals with Marcy’s inevitable demise, Trevor ignores the
Director’s orders.

The episode opens with MacLaren back
in a suit, fake interrogating Philip and
pissing off Forbes. Everyone is safe and
sound once again.

Except for Marcy, who has an ongo-
ing serious medical issues that as she
informed David could result in her life
ending. Thus, this episode is dedicated
to helping Marcy survive another day and
it’s much trickier than anyone could have
imagined. She assumed that her fate was
doomed but that’s not quite accurate.
There’s one solution....and it’s very com-

plicated to say the least.
But, before we reveal what it is, let’s talk about the dating euphoria at the top of the episode

with Marcy and David canoodling in bed like blissful newlyweds. He’s watching her sleep and
she’s loving that he’s watching her sleep. When they begin to smooch a whole lot their makeout
session is interrupted when Marcy gets a fierce nosebleed that rapidly progresses into a danger-
ous seizure which lands her in the hospital against her will. Someone else being held against
their will is Grace Day, Trevor’s teacher who was apparently on Philip’s list of soon to be dead
hosts. And the person holding her against her will is her rebellious, traveler student Trevor who
she is shocked to see in the backseat of her car. She was moments from her demise, so in order
to protect her Trevor renders her unconscious using one of those high-tech doohickies.

Then he ties her up and relocates her to the middle of the forest where no one can hear them
chatting for miles. He cares for Ms. Day and doesn’t want to attend her funeral or find out that
her consciousness has been replaced by another as ordered by the Director. He explains all of this
to her and more when she wakes up and demands to know why she is being held hostage in the
wilderness. Trevor goes into serious detail about the traveler organization and their missions and
how the whole time travel thing works. Then of course he has to remove the last few hours from
her mind as they did with MacLaren’s wife Kathryn so she won’t be running around spreading
science fiction gossip. But, that is easier said than done. Grace is smarter than Trevor thinks
and she preys on his surgical wound which he keeps touching in agony.

She knows that the forgetful serum would knock her out and he’d have to carry her to the
other end of the forest which might be impossible with his throbbing injury. She suggests that
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they walk to the car and then once they arrive he can give her a dose of amnesia. He agrees and
unties her legs so she can stroll for a bit but it backfires as soon as she fake falls, grabs a rock,
smashes his noggin’ and makes a run for it. She manages to get to her automobile, start the
engine and call her old pal 911. But that’s when the Director steps in and takes control of her
brain. After Trevor hears her scream he knows that something is up. A disgruntled traveler in
Grace’s body steps out of the car and reprimands the teen for attempting to change history.

Trevor is confused as to how the Director located him and Grace because they were off the
grid and the upset traveler informs him that his former teacher made a phone call. Then by using
the tricks of GPS and voice recognition they were able to zero in and correct Trevor’s mistake.
Now traveler Grace is ready to complete her mission which involves fixing Marcy’s broken brain.
And in order to do so she needs to meet up with one of her colleagues who goes by the name of
Traveler 0014. Unfortunately though 0014 isn’t the most available guy because he is also off the
grid in a farmhouse. He prevented his host body from dying by way of a tractor crushing him and
didn’t seem to know how to contact the outside world so he just dilly dallied around his greenery.

When MacLaren is visiting Marcy in the hospital, and promising to think of a solution to her
medical problems, he bumps into a child in the hallway who delivers a message from the Director.
MacLaren has been given the same task as Grace and that task is to find Traveler 0014. This
is one important dude! Everyone is on the lookout for him. MacLaren also breaks protocol and
reaches out to officer Boyd to ask for assistance with the Marcy in hospital situation. Boyd
happens to be her team’s medic as well as team leader and although at first she is hesitant
she agrees to do what she can to help Marcy. Now the only problem is getting Marcy out of the
hospital. It’s unlikely that she’ll be released after a doctor tells her that her MRI scan was not
great and they’ll have to do another one to be sure. So, MacLaren puts David to work.

David takes Marcy’s place as patient attached to a ton of wires and Marcy slips out of the
hospital without being detected, until of course an employee of the hospital arrives to find a
smiling David all hooked up. At the hideout, Boyd does what she can to keep Marcy going for
a day or two but that’s the limit of her abilities. Hopefully this Traveler 0014 and Grace can
perform a miracle and keep Marcy living and breathing in the 21st. Meanwhile, Carly is dealing
with her own rather serious issue. After she left her baby in the hands of her abusive ex Jeff to
perform a mission, Jeff informed child services of this who, although they were on Carly’s side,
are now recommending that her ex get custody of their kid. Carly is in a rage when she receives
this phone call and her rage is directed at Jeff who is claiming that she ”abandoned” their son.

She heads to the police station to confront him and he leads her around to corner to have
an intense talk which involves him hitting a wall when she yells the truth in his face. Carly is
attempting to rile him up so he does something violent and she gets it on the security cameras
nearby but Jeff is onto her and won’t take the bait. Carly isn’t having very many wins but Grace
and Trevor aren’t doing too badly. They succeed in locating Traveler 0014, with a little help from
MacLaren and Philip and the important dude who almost died by tractor, joyfully welcomes them
both into his quaint farmhouse. He says a familiar hello to traveler Grace who he knows from
back in the future. Apparently, Traveler 0014 is a genius programmer/hacker and Grace needs
his code to help Marcy. Also, someone evil in the future is trying to get the code as well to fulfill
their own evil goals so Traveler 0014 is keeping it safe in the past where the evil can’t grab it.

Grace takes a seat at Traveler 0014’s computer and immediately gets down to work. She types
away on the keyboard as the highly confusing, seemingly unreadable numbers flash across the
screen. She knows what those numbers mean and needs to be left alone to type. She suggests
that Trevor go prepare food for her and Traveler 0014 (and MacLaren and his team who are on
their way to the country). Trevor turns on the stove and cooks up a feast as MacLaren and Carly
stroll through the front door. Grace barely says hello before aggressively asking where Marcy is.
She is apparently not known for her people skills or her patience skills or her... being nice skills.

A handful of minutes later Marcy and Phillip arrive, just in time for dinner. But, before she
can eat, Grace wants to have a private conversation with Marcy. The other travelers leave the
room and the two gab in front of the computer. Grace asks Marcy if she knows what Quantum
Entanglement is and then launches into explaining how it is connected to Marcy’s cure. See,
Grace plans to use Traveler 0014’s code to do some transferring of consciousness of sorts. Grace
then makes Marcy look at the numbers on the screen for a bit because this solution can’t be
successful unless Marcy is ”locked in”. After a few seconds, they retire to the dining room.

Over delicious fresh grub that Trevor masterfully whipped up, Grace expands on this solution

44



Travelers Episode Guide

to the whole group. When she speaks of transferring consciousness, she’s not going to transfer
Marcy’s consciousness into another host body. She’s going to transfer it back into Marcy’s body
and her adjusted consciousness will not be using the damaged parts of her brain. It will avoid
those areas thus saving Marcy’s life kinda forever. Sounds great, right? But... what’s the catch?
This is too good to be true. Indeed it is. The hook is that Grace only had access to Marcy’s
consciousness pre-her getting to the 21st. So, she will still 100% be Marcy but she will not be
the current Marcy sitting in front of the computer. She will be the Marcy who beat up those guys
in that parking lot in episode 1. She won’t have any recent memories of her recent existence.

And that includes memories of David and more specifically memories of her falling in love
with David and even more specifically memories of her canoodling with David in bed earlier.
Marcy says that she needs some time to think about this before she decides to go forward and
MacLaren allows her to do so. Grace is not thrilled by this development and neither is Carly who
can’t believe that the FBI agent isn’t putting the mission first and forcing Marcy to go forward
with the procedure. Carly criticizes his leadership in a speech where she is clearly projecting her
own problems onto this situation. She speaks of how they have all had to make sacrifices and
Marcy shouldn’t be given the option to follow her emotions instead of the Director’s orders.

The travelers escort Marcy back to her apartment so that she can rest and think and speak
to David who has been trying to contact her ever since she disappeared from the hospital. She
texts him to say that she’s on her way home and he replies that he will be there so very soon.
Unfortunately though, Grace doesn’t wait for Marcy to make the decision on her own about the
procedure and she puts it into action without the traveler’s consent. Out of nowhere Marcy grabs
her skull, falls to the ground and shrieks out in pain. Her colleagues know what’s up and they
are not happy. Neither is David. Upon returning to the apartment, he meets the new/old Marcy
who has no recollection of her former affection for him. She greets him with ”You must be David.
I hear we are close”. Marcy did have to make a sacrifice after all. She had to sacrifice true love.
Now the question is, how meaningful can a healthy life be without your soulmate by your side?
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Grace

Season 1
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 12

Originally aired: Monday January 2, 2017
Writer: Ashley Park
Director: Amanda Tapping
Show Stars: MacKenzie Porter (Marcy Warton), Eric McCormack (Grant MacLaren),

Jared Abrahamson (Trever Holden), Reilly Dolman (Philip Pearson),
Nesta Cooper (Carly Shannon), Patrick Gilmore (David Mailer)

Guest Stars: Arnold Pinnock (Walt Forbes), Jennifer Spence (Grace Day), Leah
Cairns (Kathryn MacLaren), J. Alex Brinson (Jeff Conniker), Kristine
Cofsky (Officer Boyd), Tom McBeath (Ellis), Eileen Pedde (Mom), Kylee
Dawson (Shy Girl), Jason McKinnon (Police Officer), Yasmeene Ball
(Charlotte), Balinder Johal (Indian Woman)

Summary: The discovery of the Director’s hidden agenda, causes a rift within the
team.

The episode begins at Marcy’s beginning
in the 21st. In the previous episode all
of her recent memories from the present
day era were wiped in order to repair her
broken brain and save her soon-to-be-
over life. When a traveler consciousness
swooped in and took over the controls of
Grace Day’s body there was no stopping
the lead programmer of the organization
from working her magic and using the
methods of Quantum Entanglement and

re-transferring of consciousness to make sure Marcy wouldn’t wind up in the hospital again or
even worse the cemetery. Unfortunately, she makes this decision all on her own before the blonde
doctor has any time to ruminate and weigh the many pros and cons and have a goodbye cuddle
with David.

The Marcy & David Cuddles are out the door at the top of the finale and have been replaced
by awkward sipping of tea on his couch as he attempts to locate the Marcy he once knew within
her black hole of amnesia. He realizes quickly that it’s impossible. She won’t be remembering
the many smooches they shared or the surgery they performed or even what tea is since she is
quite perplexed by the hot beverage. She also still thinks David is a reporter like she did back in
the premiere and that casual nudity is totally cool and that kissing someone as a thank you is
a completely normal way to show gratitude. After she discovers that David assisted in sticking
scalpels into her body, she plants her lips on his lips. Maybe a greeting card would have been
more appropriate, no? David is a tad uncomfortable with the gesture, for several valid reasons.

Kat is equally as uncomfortable (angry) when her beau shows up to her place of sweating (the
gym) to say hi (beg for forgiveness) and do some sweating (begging) himself. MacLaren doesn’t see
the problem with them building muscle side by side but she knows what he’s up to and quickly
gets to interrogating him once again about his potential affair. But, this time, the FBI agent
responds in a different manner. He does not deny the adultery but admits to it and promises
that he is now present and smitten and ready to work on rebuilding their marriage. Kat doesn’t
react as positively as he hoped she would which results in him not acting positively when Carly
calls him to ask for a favour regarding Jeff. She wants the man she sleeps with to use his FBI
authority to thwart Jeff getting custody of their baby boy. MacLaren is in one heck of a mood
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though and has zero interest in lending a helping hand, especially since Carly is the reason that
Kat is angry with him. He rudely tells her to deal with it on her own and ends the call.

We feeling the intensity yet? Those melodramatic emotions continue into the next scene which
features Charlotte, the teenage host who was a misfire a few weeks back, grabbing her noggin’
and shrieking her voice as that misfire error is corrected. Once the traveler has landed, another
traveler in the house, who plays the role of Charlotte’s mother, rushes into the teen’s bedroom
to console her fake daughter after what she thought was a nightmare. Turns out, the nightmare
isn’t in Charlotte’s dreams, but in Charlotte’s using of a sharp pencil to murder her fake parent.
And then using a second pencil to murder her remaining fake family members. Boy, does that
girl know how to use a writing instrument! I can only imagine what she would accomplish with a
ballpoint pen or a permanent marker. It would be a full on massacre, which is kind of what she
hopes to achieve. She’s the lead traveler assassin and she has been given the mission to take out
her colleagues one pencil at a time. Her next target is high school counsellor Grace Day.

But this time Charlotte isn’t wielding a pencil. Her weapon of choice for this murder is a
knife. Classic! Also ironic considering how many pencils there for sure are in that school. She
slithers into Grace’s office claiming to be a student and then rapidly transforms into action movie
star. She performers some impressive, acrobatic stunts and almost succeeds in stabbing Grace
but heroic Trevor comes to the rescue of his former counsellor, teacher and mentor. Charlotte
then disappears down the hall before announcing that she is on a mission and Trevor needs to
seriously back the f up. Trevor does just the opposite though. He backs the f forward and calls a
team meeting at the hideout. When the champions are together he explains what went down at
school that day and correctly identifies the violent rebel soldier as Charlotte, the teenage misfire.

Philip says that he can’t see a single SOS that was sent out but maybe, just maybe, there
wasn’t one sent out because there was no one alive to send it. The crew brainstorms about why
the director would order to have Grace killed. She clearly must have done something terrible,
right? Or is it possible that the director wasn’t the one who told Charlotte to sharpen her pencils.
Maybe, just maybe, it was something else. Something from the current version of the future that
MacLaren and his team know nothing about. Something that Grace calls ”The Faction”. She then
does some explaining. Apparently, in the days to come, the director isn’t the only tough guy in
town. There’s also a group of rogue travelers that were tired of their former boss bossing them
around. Since the director is a highly advanced quantum AI program, he makes his decisions
purely based on logic and fact and world saving ability. Stuff like emotion and relationships and
the tragedy of human sacrifice are not present in his no compromise mandate.

So, they said tata to the ruthless robot and kick started their own organization which either
came before or after kick starting a corruption in the director’s software. In order to protect her
almighty leader, Grace then did something MacLaren and his team also knew nothing about.
She reset the director. Say what? It’s true. Since she was the one who programmed him in the
first place so it’s completely in her ability to do so and she did so without anyone’s permission.
She rebooted the director’s OS through a virus while transferring Marcy’s consciousness, which
means that she had ulterior motives for salvaging the cranium of the blonde doctor. She sees it
as saving two birds with one command but MacLaren sees it as betraying two birds with one lie.

The FBI agent simply cannot fathom why she would want to reset an AI that’s been running
every facet of their lives for decades. Grace on the other hand can’t fathom how nobody is thank-
ing her for a job well done. Sure, doing so has resulted in a temporary power struggle but The
Faction doesn’t believe in the grand plan anyway. Before deflecting Helios, these vigilantes were
already in the process of abandoning ship and they are very capable of brutality. Grace then
reveals that they were the ones responsible for capturing the travelers and putting them in those
cages and grilling them via inquisitive, old fashioned TV screens. They did so to test the travelers’
loyalties and to prevent a mission that they did not agree with. That was the first sign that their
agenda was being fulfilled and therefore Grace had to come to the 21st to stop ’em.

She reassures the panicked team that the director will come back online more secure than
ever and normality will be fully restored. But, before that happens, Ms. Day needs to get to a
more reliable hideout since the teen killer is following her scent. She requests that Trevor take
her to Ellis, the elderly traveler and programmer with the farmhouse in the middle of nowhere.
She can guarantee her safety because the farmer has taken precautions and she’s less likely to
die out there than in the city where travelers could be overwritten by The Faction and stick a
pencil through her skull. Unfortunately though when she pulls up to the reliably not dangerous
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farmhouse with Trevor, Ellis isn’t home. When he returns and they’re all ”Dude! Where the hell
were ya?” he shows them a truckload of supplies he was picking up around town. Supplies that
he needs to build a quantum frame device which is all apart of the director’s ”contingency plan”.

Say what? Contingency plan? What contingency plan? The contingency plan that the AI
thought up when The Faction started throwing shade. This device would allow the director to
send itself to the 21st. He’s had teams working on the core elements for months. Ellis has been
keeping some secrets from Grace and she’s been keeping some secrets from him, mainly that
she rebooted the director. When he hears about this very unnecessary rebooting, he criticizes the
programmer and scoffs that only she has an ego big enough to make a move like that. He then
shows Grace and Trevor his little project in his giant barn. And boy is that quantum frame a
thing of beauty/work of art/massive glowing machine with tons of buttons and knobs and parts.

As the trio adds the final touches to the director’s contingency plan, back at the hideout in
the city, a confused, forgetful Marcy discover’s Philip’s heroin stash hidden in the bathroom and
she criticizes the addict. He explains that he was only using again in large quantities because
she wasn’t around to ween him off of it. She limits how much he gets and orders him to not use
above it. There’s a new Marcy in town and she is not playing around. She’s especially not playing
around when David calls her cell to say that a man with a gun is in his home and he is pointing
the gun at his head and will continue pointing the gun in that direction until Marcy returns.
Looks like we have another rebel assassin in our midst! But, this unnamed armed dude isn’t
the only one who knows how to shoot and aim. Marcy proves her shooting and aiming abilities
when she fires a bullet into the brain of the assassin. She does so through a vent in David’s
neighbour’s apartment. Afterwards, a traumatized David thinks he should call the police since
there’s, you know, a dead body lying on his floor. Marcy thinks otherwise. She advises that he
leave the corpse, claim ignorance and buy a one way plane ticket to literally anywhere else.

Silly David doesn’t listen to Marcy’s wise words and dials 911, which results in him being
heavily questioned by the authorities. Carly’s ex Jeff oddly enough finds himself in a similar
situation. When he goes to drop off their baby at a sitter’s house, he doesn’t know that Carly is
lurking in the shadows of her car, watching him hand off her flesh and blood to another person.
She looks on sadly and grieves about losing the one thing that she loved most. Her grieving is cut
short though when the teenage killer Charlotte comes around the other side of the car with a gun
as well. Oh, she’s upgraded from knife to gun! Good for her. Carly gets a glimpse of this image in
her rearview mirror and immediately switches into savage, ultra tough, fight-to-the-death mode.

Carly gets in a few good hits but the adolescent assassin is just too strong and too gun-
holding. Moments before Charlotte pulls the trigger to end Carly’s visit to the 21st, Jeff pulls out
his weapon and sends a bullet straight into the teenager’s youthful heart. Yup. Jeff saved Carly’s
life. That’s what I’m talking about when I ask: who’s evil and who’s not evil? It’s hard to tell these
days in the world of Travelers. Even abusive, corrupt, selfish police officer Jeff is helping out. It’s
a bizarro world and Carly does not want to stick around for it. She leaps into the driver’s seat of
her car and speeds away. And as the only witness of the shooting, that puts Jeff in quite a sticky
situation. He’s got a dead teenager on his hands and no one around to verify her criminality.

Speaking of guns and shooting guns, we have another almost instance of that. As MacLaren
heads to his car in a parking lot, Officer Boyd steps forward with a pistol as well. Seems to be the
trend these days. Everyone’s got their own personal revolver. When MacLaren is all ”What the
shit are you doing, girl?” Office Boyd informs him that she was ordered to perform this mission
via a messenger. The director told her to kill MacLaren and she does not question the grand plan.
Although she insists to know what he has done wrong and doesn’t fully trust him when he says
nothing, she’s got a soft spot for the handsome gent so she spares his life, stages a shooting and
then takes one in the bulletproof vest from MacLaren so he can swiftly escape.

And where does he instantly go? To his adoring wife who hates him of course! He locates Kat
in a restaurant and instructs her to exit the city because he’s got some ”work” related problems
going on and she’s in danger. Although they were bickering only earlier that day, she knows
that he’s serious and worries for his safety. She should be worried. The assassin collective is
growing and they have located the traveler hideout. Looks like Grace was right about it not being
the hottest place to hide. More guns make an appearance as bullets begin piercing through the
walls of the homebase and MacLaren, Marcy, Philip, and Carly have to run for their saves. They
specifically run towards Ellis’s farmhouse because they’re all a tad suspicious of Grace and Ellis
and wonder if Trevor is in danger too. While on the road, Philip and Marcy have an intimate
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talk about how this Marcy is colder than the previous Marcy and Carly and MacLaren have an
intimate talk about how they can’t be kissing or doing sex anymore.

MacLaren lectures her about how the mission needs to come first and the future needs to
be left in the past and they can’t complicate things with more melodramatic emotions. Carly
passive-aggressively agrees but clearly she’s not pleased at all to hear this. Trevor is not pleased
to read a text message he receives from the director which orders him to abort the mission. He
wonders if Grace is indeed the evil one but she assures him that The Faction is likely behind that
order and to ignore it. The director wouldn’t send a text when communicating something that
important. They would send a messenger or he would deliver it directly like he did with Ellis.
But, wait, Grace wants to know if Ellis received that message before the reset because even then
the AI was vulnerable to corruption. Ellis doesn’t see a problem with him receiving it at any time
but Trevor has a problem with all of it and intends to destroy the quantum frame using an axe.
Ellis replies to Trevor’s axe with a... wait for it... gun! We got another gun!

And here comes Carly with her gun, followed by MacLaren, Philip and Marcy. Carly is curious
to know something too. She asks Ellis if he was told to assassinate Trevor. Interesting question,
Carly. What inspired this inquiry? Oh. I know. She was told to assassinate MacLaren so naturally
she’s assuming that everyone’s been sent a ”kill the love of your life/Trevor” text. There is a lot of
miscommunication happening here. The travelers all hold their respective weapons and debate
about whether the director is behind the quantum frame or The Faction is and if Grace Day is a
good guy or a bad guy and if Ellis is a good guy or a bad guy and if text messages are an effective
way to communicate. It might have been easier if the director just called them on the phone or
at least sent an email with more info. Something highly interesting that we discover during this
debate is that in the current version of the future Shelter 41 did not collapse and the thousands
of people who died didn’t die because history has been changed.

They are very alive in Ellis and Grace’s future and are running an underground movement
under the name of The Faction. Woo, baby. This is one complicated back story! The complications
continue when Carly points a gun at MacLaren, Trevor moves to chop up the quantum frame,
Ellis accidentally shoots Grace instead of Trevor but the bullet goes through Grace’s chest into
Trevor’s chest anyway which means they’re both injured, the quantum frame begins to power
up, Ellis becomes a messenger and tells the team to abort the mission and destroy the work of
art, and MacLaren’s partner, FBI agent Forbes, storms into the barn with back-up just as the
massive glowing machine with lots of buttons and knobs and parts does it’s glowing thang.
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Dylan Playfair . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
0101 (Kyle); 0103 (Kyle); 0104 (Kyle)

Gerard Plunkett . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Ted Bishop)

Shanel Pratap . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (News Anchor #2)

R
David Raynolds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Aleksander / Patrick)
Jesse Reid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Military Scientist)
Teryl Rothery . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

0101 (Patricia Holden); 0102 (Patricia Holden); 0104
(Patricia Holden); 0106 (Patricia Holden); 0107
(Patricia Holden)

S
Anthony Scardera. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Teen #2)
Darren E. Scott. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0107 (Masked Guy #1)
Milo Shandel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Pastor)
Howard Siegel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (Bookie)
Sian Sladen. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0106 (Nurse)
Audrey Smallman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (10 Year Old Girl)
Bronwen Smith. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Marion)
Pat Smith . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0108 (Mr. Morrissy)
Chevy Souther . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Jason)
Jennifer Spence . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

0103 (Grace Day); 0104 (Grace Day); 0108 (Grace
Day); 0111 (Grace Day); 0112 (Grace Day)

T
Ian Tracey . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

0101 (Ray); 0103 (Ray); 0104 (Ray); 0107 (Ray)
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Andre Tricoteux . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0105 (Captor)

V
Preston Vanderslice . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0111 (Man Texting)
Clay Virtue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Black Op #1)

W
Erika Walter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0107 (MacLaren’s Future Wife)
Chris Webb . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Businessman)
Kelsey Wheeler . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0104 (Dad); 0105 (Dad)
Garfield Wilson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0104 (Carter)
Nathan Witte . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Traveler Security Guard)

Y
Mathew Yanagiya . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (EMT Traveler)
Françoise Yip . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (Judge)
Kis Yurij . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Russian #1)

Z
Kyra Zagorsky . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0102 (Dr. Delaney); 0106 (Dr. Delaney)
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